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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), | herein present
the annual report of NNK Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to mobile users
through electronic banking systems of PRC banks, offline channels including convenience
stores, mobile phone stores and other third party retailer chains, and other channels

including third-party online platforms, its own websites and WeChat public account.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, due to the intensified competition in mobile
top-up service industry, the Group experienced decline in both mobile top-up requests
through electronic banking systems and offline channels, and average discount rate
received from the PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors. The number
of mobile top-up requests processed by 007ka top-up platform was approximately
[43.5 million in 2017, representing a decrease of approximately 19.6% as compared
with approximately [78.4 million in 2016. The gross transaction value with mobile users
decreased by approximately 21.6% from approximately RMBI15,348.7 million in 2016
to approximately RMB12,038.5 million in 2017. The average discount rate that the
Company received from the PRC telecommunication operators, their distributors and
other channels decreased from approximately 1.0% for the year ended 31 December
2016 to approximately 0.7% for the year ended 3| December 2017. These translated into
approximately 48.8% decline in the Group's revenue of approximately RMB83.3 million in

2017 when compared with approximately RMB162.6 million recorded in 2016.
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In the face of such headwinds, the Group made the expansion of its user base and
the maintenance of its leading position in mobile top-up service industry in the PRC a
priority. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group continued to expand
the network of banks and offline channel partners. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group had cooperative relationships with 62 PRC banks, including five largest state-
owned commercial banks and 10 of the 12 nation-wide joint stock commercial banks, as
compared with 55 PRC banks as at 31 December 2016. The Group also collaborated
with approximately 50,1 10 offline channel partners as at 31 December 2017, as compared

with approximately 49,700 offline channel partners as at 31 December 201 6.

Against the backdrop of increasing number of mobile users choosing e-commerce
platforms as the preferred top-up channel, the Group actively sought cooperation
opportunities with influential internet companies and leading e-commerce platforms, as
well as their major distributors. Also, on the back of growing demand of data usage top-
up service in the PRC, the Group continued to expand data usage top-up services. The
gross transaction value for data usage top-up service through various channels including
electronic banking systems of PRC banks, offline channels and other channels increased
by approximately 6.0% from approximately RMB14.9 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB5.8 million in 2017. The Group believes that these efforts will help to nurture a new

revenue growth point for the Group in the future.

Due to the reduction of mobile top-up requests through the e-banking system and offline
channels and the decrease of the average discount rate provided by the PRC telecom
operators and their distributors, the loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year of 2017 is approximately RMB19.0 million, as compared to profit of approximately
RMB33.5 million in 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

OUTLOOK

The Group's mobile top-up service business in the PRC will continue to face challenges
in 2018, with the growing popularity of the customers using e-commerce platforms for
mobile top-up, and the continuing reduction of discounts offered by the operators and
their major distributors. Despite of these, the Group remains as a leading service provider
in the mobile top-up industry through electronic banking systems, and possesses well-
established cooperation networks with the PRC banks and suppliers cultivated during its
close working relationships with them in the past decade; a reliable, secure and scalable
proprietary operating platform; and devoted and experienced sales and customer service
teams. The Group believes, by deploying the above competitive strengths, can overcome

the upcoming challenges in the future.

The Group considers the increase in transaction volume and lowering of cost and
expenses as important goals in 2018. The Group is working with PRC banks by expanding
its service offering to end customers through online banking systems. Apart from the
mobile top-up services to mobile users through the online banking systems, the Group
is expanding its cooperation with certain major PRC banks by supplying mobile and
data usage top-up for promotion activities of these banks on their websites and mobile
applications. The Group will also continue deepening the cooperation relationship with
existing partners and actively seek further cooperation with internet companies and
e-commerce platforms to capture the growth in these top-up channels. Furthermore,
the Group will continue to source from its suppliers” network for mobile top-up credits
with both price and quality competitive, and optimise current operational procedures to

improve the efficiency of its workflow.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff and management team for their dedication and contribution in the
past year, as well as to our shareholders and business partners for their confidence and

support to the Group.

Huang Junmou
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW BB E R

The following table sets forth the Group's income statement for the year ended 3| TRIREZE-_Z—tF+-_A=+—HIF

December 2017 as compared to the year ended 3| December 2016: FHHZE-T— /\¢+ A=+—HIFER
SEKRROLR -

Year ended 3| December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2017 2016 Change
—E-t& C—TRF 23
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
ARBTRT AR%TT
Revenue WA 83,321 162,564 -48.8%
Cost of revenue WA (38,520) (77,850) -50.4%
Gross Profit E7 43,364 82,143 -47.1%
Other income and expenses Hith A R F % (713) 11,167 -106.3%
Distribution and selling expenses DR ER (15,775) (10,095) 56.4%
Administrative expenses THR X (27,195) (26,239) 3.8%
Research and development expenses MEFRZ (13,017) (14,567) -11.0%
Finance costs BBAA (6,393) (7.759) -17.9%
(Loss) profit before tax BRBEAT (&518) &E R (19,729) 34,650 -156.9%
Income tax credit (expense) PrGHER (FX) 691 (1,105) 162.5%
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to NG 2PN 3
owners of the Company Fr(BR)ER (19,038) 33,545 -156.8%
Revenue L6

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately REBE-T-LFTZA=+T-ALFEM

RMB83.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 48.8% as compared with 7 ARESGRSNARBGIEEL &

approximately RMBI162.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The decrease of HE-T-ET-A=Z1THLFEOAR

revenue was primarily due to the decrease in mobile top-up requests through electronic 1 162.6 B &L D H148.8% » Wz M+ B el

banking systems and offline channels and the decline of average discount rate received RBRETRITAGRRTRENFHEER

from the PRC telecommunication operators and their distributors. EERED  TERETREEELALESD
HE R AT IR TR -

1 0 NNK Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Transaction Value with Mobile Users

The gross transaction value with mobile users decreased by approximately 21.6%
to approximately RMB12,038.5 million for the year ended 3| December 2017 from
approximately RMBI5,348.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The decrease
was mainly due to the decline in mobile top-up requests through electronic banking
systems and offline channels as an increasing number of mobile users chose to top-up
via e-commerce platforms such as WeChat and Taobao. The gross transaction value
via electronic banking systems decreased by approximately 30.1% to approximately
RMB6,395.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 from approximately
RMB9,145.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The gross transaction value
through offline channels decreased by approximately 65.3% to approximately RMB571.2
million for the year ended 3| December 2017 from approximately RMBI,644.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016. However, the gross transaction value through other
channels including third-party online platforms, the Group's own websites and WeChat
public account increased by approximately | 1.2% to approximately RMB5,07 1.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 from approximately RMB4,559.2 million for the year
ended 3| December 2016.

Gross Transaction Value with PRC Telecommunication Operators, their Distributors
and other Channels

The average discount rate that the Company received from the PRC telecommunication
operators, their distributors and other channels decreased from approximately 1.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately 0.7% for the year ended 3|
December 2017. The gross transaction value with the PRC telecommunication operators,
their distributors and other channels decreased by approximately 21.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2016, which

was in line with the decrease in the gross transaction value with mobile users.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRDN

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased by approximately 50.4% to approximately RMB38.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 from approximately RMB77.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016, primarily due to the decrease in the gross transaction value

with mobile users.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased by approximately 47.1% to approximately RMB43.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 from approximately RMB82.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The Group's overall gross margin slightly increased to approximately 52.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 from approximately 50.5% for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Other Income and Expenses

Other income and expenses decreased by approximately 106.3% to net expenses of
approximately RMBO.7 miillion for the year ended 31 December 2017 from net income
of approximately RMBI1.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, primarily due
to decrease in government grants and subsidy of approximately RMB5.5 million, and

allowance for doubtful debt of approximately RMB4.0 million.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately 56.4% to approximately
RMBI5.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 from approximately RMBIO.|
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, primarily attributable to the increase in

sales promotion expenses.

1 2 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 3.8% to approximately RMB27.2
million for the year ended 3| December 2017 from approximately RMB26.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016, primarily attributable to the increase in staff cost due

to an increase in the number of employees.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses decreased by approximately | 1.0% to approximately
RMBI3.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 from approximately RMB14.6
million for the year ended 3| December 2016, primarily due to the decrease in

depreciation cost of computers and office equipment.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately 17.9% to approximately RMB6.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 from approximately RMB7.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, primarily due to the decrease in interest expenses on bank borrowings
as a result of the decrease in average bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December

2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRDN

Income Tax Credit (Expense)
No provision for income tax expense was made for the year ended 31 December 2017

as no assessable tax profit was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2017,

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to Owners of the Company
As a result of cumulative effects of foregoing, loss for the year ended 31 December 2017
of approximately RMB19.0 million was incurred, as compared with the profit for the year

ended 31 December 2016 of approximately RMB33.5 million.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
The Group's working capital was funded by cash from operating activities, bank loans and

proceeds from global offering. Certain financial data are summarized as follows:

FEHiER (Fx)

HRBE_T—tF+_A=+—-BILFEY
BEGREANDN  RTEHBE_FT—LF
T A=+ BRSBTS AR -

ARFREEAREFR(BR)ET
HREASBENRGEE HE_T—LF
TZA=ZT-BLFEEEFRHOARE 190
BEL MEE-T—R"Ft-A=1+—HI
EEELEMNNAREBSEET -

RBEERUBERAREFER
AEENEERSMELRHMERE  |IT
ERREREEMGHARN - ETHBHE
I

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-8
2017 2016
—E2—t§ ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRHeEED 144,821 124,719
Net current assets MEEEFE 201,526 230,049
Net cash (used in) from operating activities mEEH(MA)AEHREEE (8,329) 155,788
Net cash from (used in) financing activities REZBME(MA)REFHE 27,647 (197,664)

14 NNK Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
RMBI44.8 million, as compared with approximately RMBI124.7 million as at 31 December
2016. The Group reported net current assets of approximately RMB201.5 million as at 31
December 2017, as compared with approximately RMB230.0 million as at 31 December
2016. The Group's current ratio was approximately 1.98 as at 31 December 2017, as

compared with approximately 2.35 as at 31 December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash used in operating activities was
approximately RMB8.3 million, as compared with net cash from operating activities of
approximately RMBI155.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. For the year
ended 3| December 2017, net cash from financing activities was approximately RMB27.6
million, as compared with net cash used in financing activities of approximately RMB197.7

million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The bank borrowings of the Group increased by approximately 55.0% to approximately
RMB124.0 million as at 31 December 2017 from approximately RMB80.0 million as at
31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, the total bank borrowings, being interest-
bearing bank borrowings which were dominated in Renminbi, carried interest rates
ranging from 5.00% to 5.44% (3| December 2016: 4.35% to 4.79%) per annum and were

repayable within one year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRDN

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio (calculated by dividing bank borrowings by
total equity as at the end of the year) of the Group increased to approximately 0.6 from
approximately 0.34 as at 31 December 2016, primarily attributable to the increase in bank

borrowings and decrease in total equity of the Group.

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMB2.4 million, as compared with approximately RMB2.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The above expenditure was mainly related to the

leasehold improvement for headquarter and purchase of computers and office equipment.

Significant Investment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant investment.

Capital Commitments and Operating Lease Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material capital commitments.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's operating lease commitments amounted to
approximately RMB10.9 million, as compared with approximately RMBO.6 million as at 31
December 201 6.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's reporting currency is in Renminbi to which the Group’s material transactions
are denominated. The net proceed from global offering are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, which exposed the Group to market risk arising from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rate. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy,
however, the management of the Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure closely

and consider the usage of hedging instruments when the need arises.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any asset charges.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities, guarantees or any litigation.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS
There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December

2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material acquisition or disposal

of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENRR DN

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 156 (31 December 2016: 146) full-time
employees. Total staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration) was approximately
RMB25.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, as compared with approximately
RMB24.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. All employees have joined
the state-managed retirement benefits schemes or Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
in Hong Kong, which are classified as defined contribution plans. The Group believes
that employees are one of its most important assets and the Group strives to offer
a competitive remuneration to its employees. The Group has been recruiting and
promoting individuals based on merit and their development potentials. Remuneration
package offered to all employees including Directors is determined with reference to their
performance, qualifications, experience and the prevailing salary levels in the market. The
Group has been providing training opportunities for its employees in order to enhance

their qualifications and equip them with necessary skills.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Junmou (B &%), aged 51, is our chairman and has been an executive
Director of the Company since 18 June 2014. He is a founder of the Group and has
served as a director and chairman of the board of Shenzhen Niannianka Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen NNK" or the "PRC Operating Entity”) since its
incorporation. He is responsible for overseeing our Group's overall strategic planning
and management. Mr. Huang has over |2 years of experience in information technology
related industries, including over ten years of experience in the mobile top-up service
industry. Prior to founding Shenzhen NNK| he was the general manager of Shenzhen
Motivity Telecom Co, Ltd. (RYITTRE) /) BB IR 2 Fl), a company primarily engaging
in the provision of information technology outsourcing services from June 2004 to May
2006, where he was responsible for business development. Mr. Huang was a shareholder
and a director of Shenzhen Honglingyu Industrial Limited Company from May 200
to May 2004, where he was responsible for strategic planning and management of the
company. Prior to that, Mr. Huang was a shareholder and worked as a supervisor for
Shenzhen Difulan Industrial Limited Company from May 1998 to May 2001, where he was
responsible for administrative and financial management. Mr. Huang was an employee of
the Shenzhen Post Office (&YIITTEE /D) from September 1988 to August 1992, and
an employee of Shenzhen Telecommunications Development Company (F3IITH E15%
&2 A]) from November 1992 to November 1995. Prior to that, Mr. Huang worked for
Shenzhen Fengsheng International Textile and Fashion Company (73|22 55% BB 4 AR
F AR A]) from October 1986 to October 1988.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEBEFE

Mr. Yang Hua (%%), aged 46, has been an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company since 18 June 2014. Mr. Yang is responsible for our Group's
overall management, operations and business development. He is a founder of our Group
and has served as a director and general manager of Shenzhen NNK since December
2010. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yang was the general manager of Shenzhen Long
Feng Hua Industrial Co, Ltd. (RIEEEE X BN F]), a company engaged in the
provision of software engineering services from June 2000 to May 2006. He served as the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Shuaihua Electronics Co., Ltd. (FIITEVEE F
BBR7AF)), a company engaged in the provision of software engineering and information
technology services, where he was responsible for business development and research

and development from August 1998 to May 2000.

Mr. Yang received a bachelor's degree in semiconductor devices and physics from Xi'an

Jiaotong University (FI &S 3EAZ) in July 1994,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Xiangcheng (ZEZH), aged 49, has been a non-executive Director of the
Company since 18 June 2014. He is responsible for providing oversight over our Group's
administrative matters and business strategies. He has also been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhen NNK from June 2006 to January 2011 and a director since then.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li was the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Shuaihua
Electronics Co,, Ltd. (RIITENEEFBERA

provision of software engineering and information technology services, from October

Al), a company primarily engaged in the

1998 to May 2006, where he was responsible for the company's day-to-day operations

and research and development.

Mr. Li received his bachelor's degree in applied mathematics and computer application
from the University of Electronic Science and Technology of China (B FHEHEAE) in
July 1991,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xinhua (FF#7Z), aged 70, has been a non-executive Director of the Company
since 18 June 2014. He is responsible for supervising our Group's administrative matters
and business strategies. Mr. Xu joined our Group in June 2009 and has served as the
supervisor of Shenzhen NNK since January 2011. Prior to joining our Group, he was a
senior engineer of the Shenzhen Telecommunications Bureau (RYITTEIER) from
January 2001 to March 2008 where he was responsible for administrative and human
resources management and a senior engineer at the Guangdong Provincial Posts and
Telecommunications Company (BRE{E/A ) from September 1999 to January
2001, where he was responsible for corporate planning and development and asset
management. From May 1975 to September 1999, Mr. Xu worked at the Shantou District
Posts and Telecommunications Company (ILSEE {52 A)), starting as a technician and
gradually being promoted to an engineer, and was responsible for corporate development,

project management and operations management.

Mr. Yu Zida (Wi F3£), aged 53, has been a non-executive Director of the Company since
18 June 2014. He is responsible for overseeing the strategic development of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yu has served as the president of Shenzhen Sinomaster
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (RIITI1/EIRE KB B R 2 F]) since September 2013.
He has served as director of T&S Communications Co,, Ltd. (FYI KR K BIERHBR
A A)) since March 2014, a company Listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code:
300570). Since 20 March 2015, he has been served as a director of Shenzhen Aisidi Co,,
Ltd. (RYITI B MR BBR A7), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 002416). Since April 2016, he has been served as a director of Shanghai
Kuwu Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (L/BE R HEEEERNHBRAF), a
company listed on New OTC Market.

EERGHREEEREFE

FHERLE 70m B-T-WFEAAT\H
E-ERLTRANENTES RAREE

SENTHREEREBRE - FFLAR_ZE
NEAAMAREE ¥ -T——F— At
EERINFFERNES - RMAKREE 2R
BN -EE-F-AE-_FTTN\F=-AELR
YTEEREGHSRIEM  BETHIA
NEREE R-NANFLAZ-TFT—F
—AEERRECRARABRIEN  BERA
REIRBREBEEE -N—NEtAFOAZE
“ANNFAR  FRERNBEERARERE
BRE  RRBZHEFTRIRHM BELER
B HBEEENELER -

WMFELE S35 BT —EFEA ATNH
B—EAAAAIMIENTES - RABREEAR
EEMBBER - MARKERN - MEEE
T-=FNAREERYImBMNBRERES
RARIEH - KB -T—MF= AREDRIY
ARKXBERBERAFN—RNRIEFFR S
P EMRIA R - R AR - 300570) WEE -
BE-Z-AEZA-TH#E HELRIHE
mERGAERAA(—RRAINEFR S E
MHAR BRORE 0021416 MEE- 5=
T-ANFHAR  BREFLSHERHERER
BRERAR(—KAFT =R EMO DA HNE
$ o

FEREEFRAR 21
2017 R




Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEBEFE

Mr. Yu was a deputy director of the end user committee of the China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (FBIE IS EBIR R AL B 2R

FAFZ&E) from November 2007 to August 2013. He was recognized as a National
Young and Middle-aged Expert with Outstanding Contributions (7 BIff &5 F & 22 1 A
EXR) by the State Council of the PRC in 1999 for his contribution to engineering services.
Mr. Yu was awarded a certificate for High-Level Professional in Shenzhen in November
2013 for a term of five years, where he was recognized as a national-level talent by the
Human Resources and Social Security Administration of Shenzhen Municipality (3|
MANERMILERED). He served as an assistant vice president and Head of the
Headquarter Research and Development Promotion Department (T35 #E# 28 25) of the
Haier Group (/8fR 5 ®)) started from February 2002. From October 2003, he served as
a vice president and the head of the information technology products department, from
April 2005 he served as a vice president and head of the company's strategy department,
from December 2009, he served as senior vice president and chief technology officer,
and from April 2010 to September 2013 he served as executive vice president and Chief
Technology Officer of the Haier Group. He also served as a director of Qingdao Haier
Co. ltd. (BEBBRHARA
(stock code: 600690), from June 2010 to April 2013.

7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange

Mr. Yu received a bachelor's degree in power engineering from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology (EEFI RHAER) (formerly known as Huazhong College of
Engineering (E£ TEF1)) in July 1985. He further obtained a master's degree in power
engineering from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEFP LK)
(formerly known as Huazhong Polytechnic University (2F 2 T K22)) in July 1988.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Zhangxi (ME%), aged 66, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has over 22 years of experience in
the information systems industry. He has held multiple research and teaching positions,
including tenured professorship and the co-director of the Center for Advanced Analytics
and Business Intelligence of Texas Tech University since 2007, the dean of Yunshang Silk
Road Big Data Industry Research Institute, Korla Economic & Technological Development
Zone (ERBRBERMARRE LSRR ABIBERT ) from August 2016
to January 2018 representing Xihua University (F52£ X 28) at Sichuan, the director of the
Sichuan Province Finance Intelligence and Engineering Key Laboratory (P9)1%4 € B
ZHSRMTESHERE) since May 2008, the director of Fujian Engineering School
Next Generation Internet Research Center ({872 T 122t T — R BB A KT e A At
FEFEF L) from 2004 to 2010, adjunct professor of the Fujian Engineering School since
June 2004, a professor of Tongji University ([RI/EAZ2) since October 1995. He headed
the provincial pilot of international payment balance information management system,
a program of the 7th Five-Year Programs for Science and Technology Development of
China of the National Development and Reform Committee during 1988 to 1992. He
was a deputy supervisor at the Fujian Province Economic Information Centre ({&i£4
KB B AL from November 1987 to July 1992 and a senior engineer at the Fujian
Provincial Planning Committee Computer Centre (1R I2EFTEIZ BB FRIEHR D)
from November 1983 to October 1987.

Mr. Lin received a master of engineering degree from Tsinghua University (B2 AZ2) in
June 1982, He further received a master of science degree in economics in December
1996 and a doctor of philosophy degree in December 1999 from the University of Texas
at Austin. He is a member of several key industry organizations, including the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineer, the Institute for Operations Research and the

Management Sciences and Association for Information Systems.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEBEFE

Mr. Qian Haomin (82 %), aged 41, was appointed to our Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 November 2014. He has extensive experience in brand
strategy and operations and participated in the establishment of CSJ-SBI Financial Media
Co, Ltd, a joint venture between China Securities Journal and SBI Group in January 201 I.
He currently serves as a director, general manager of CSJ-SBI Financial Media Co., Ltd. He
joined China Securities Journal (FF BI#& %) in June 2001 and had held various positions
including reporter, director of the career development department and assistant to the
chief editor and assistant to the journal president. Prior to joining China Securities Journal,
he worked as an assistant researcher at the International Information Research Agency of
OEIFRE RHTEAT) from August 1998

to June 2001. He was a member of the drafting committee of the “Interpretation of

the National Information Centre (1% 15 &

Securities Law" of The National People’s Congress Securities Law Amendment Drafting
Group (RBIARZBH ZEHEENE (BHEERE) HEHA) and the drafting
committee of the 2005 and 2006 editions of “China Trust Company Operation Report”
by China Renmin University Trust Fund Research Institute (FF Bl A R K255 E
EMEAT2005K2006FF (HEEFARARKEERE) HZE ). In addition, Mr.
Qian is the chairman of China Securities Jinniu (Beijing) Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.
(FE2F GLR) REZEBBER AT, a company he joined in March 2012 and he s
the director and General Manager of (L/8¥TEMEESFAEMRAE]). Mr. Qian is
qualified as a fund practitioner of the Asset Management Association of China ({78 %
FEESEWE), and he was recruited in July 2017 as the researcher at the Institute of
Finance and Accounting in Wuhan University (/2 K 2287 75 ER & 5 HIFF ZTE).

Mr. Qian received a bachelor's degree in economics from Peking University (1t =K 22) in
July 1998.

24 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

BEREE 45 RZT—DNFE+—A
T RAEZAMAESRREABIFNITE
EoBFRmEERRELTEREEELER
o 2 Eirh B3 5 IR T E £ (SBI Group)
RZE——F—ARIMA & Z%CS-SB
Financial Media Co., Ltd.° f& B A& {E CSJ-SBI
Financial Media Co., Ltd. BE FRALIE o K
RZZZ—FAAMAFEBESRR  EEZHE
B afELE BEEERISFERARED
BRI REIE - RIMARBEERRZA
BER—NANANENAEZSS—F A AEME
RESFLERELHEMOBEHRES - %
ABEEAREFLEREE/ (B EER)
REEKERTBAARKEETEESHEN
2005 X 2006 FRCHEIEARARLLEERE)
REEKE - L9 BRERFESF(ULR)
REZHABRRAAMNESR  BR_T—=F
ZAMAZRRIBERA LEHENEEEHHA
BRARIMESRELE - BEERETEE
FREZCEGERUMNABESREEARA
8 BEBER-_FT—tFLtRAEEARNERS
B EEHMEMMAES

BERER—NNNFLARBIERABEES

BB -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Zhao Jinlin (B Z ), aged 49, was appointed to our Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 November 2014. She is a professor in the School of Economics
of Shenzhen University, which she joined in June 2006. Ms. Zhao is a committee
member of China International Taxation Research Institute. She is currently serving as
an independent non-executive director of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China)
Limited (5% B E1%0% (FE)) BBRZAA]), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0312), an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Infinova Technology Co., Ltd. (RINIERIARIEADBRAF), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002528), and Shenzhen Esun Display Co., Ltd (i
Y B MERERAT]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 002751).

Ms. Zhao received a bachelor’s degree in welding from the Xi" an Jiaotong University (78
LZABAE) in July 1989, a master's degree in accounting from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (PRI AEAER) in June 1995 and a doctor of philosophy

degree in accounting from Jinan University (B A2 in January 2005.
Save as disclosed above,

(1) the Directors did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies of
which the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas
in the last three years prior to the date of this report and does not hold any other

positions with the Company or other members of the Group; and

(2)  the Directors do not have other relationship with any other Directors, senior

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEBEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Wai Tung (EMR), aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong has over |5 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and financial management in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Wong is responsible

for the financial management of the Group.

Mr. Wong graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor degree
in accounting in November 2002. Mr. Wong is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of

Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

[t is the belief of the Board that good corporate governance plays a vital part in
maintaining the success of the Company. The Company is committed to achieve and
maintain high standards of corporate governance practices to ensure greater corporate
performance accountability and transparency, and safeguard the interests of shareholders

of the Company (the “Shareholders").

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practice of the Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code

and align with the latest developments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding Director's securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
to all Directors and all the Directors have confirmed complied with the required standard

set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.

THE BOARD

Corporate strategy

The strategy of the Group is to deliver sustainable returns with solid financial
fundamentals, so as to enhance total long-term return for Shareholders. Please refer to
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
for discussions and analyses of the performance of the Group, how the Group generates
and preserves value over the longer term and how the Group will execute its strategy for

delivering the business objectives of the Group.
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Board Composition
The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including two executive Directors, three

non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board for the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date

of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangcheng

Mr. XU Xinhua

Mr. YU Zida

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the board members
and the senior management are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 26 of this annual report. Details
regarding the term of appointment of the non-executive Directors are set out in the
section headed "Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment” on page 74 in

this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provisions A2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of a listed company should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. In accordance with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") are
separately performed by Mr. Huang Junmou and Mr. Yang Hua, and the division of their
responsibilities is clearly established and set out in writing in order to ensure a clear

distinction between the responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO.

Mr. Huang Junmou is the Chairman of the Board and primarily responsible for providing
leadership to the Board and overseeing the Group's overall strategic planning and
management. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practices. With
the support of the company secretaries of the Company, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner. The Chairman encourages all Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors to actively participate in all board and committee meetings. Mr. Huang
is a founder of the Group and has over |12 years of experience in information technology
related industries, including over ten years of experience in the mobile top-up service

industry.

Mr. Yang Hua is the CEO of the Company and responsible for Group's day-to-day
management, operations and business development. The CEO focuses on implementing
objectives, polices and strategies approved by the Board. Mr. Yang is a founder of the
Group and has over |2 years of experiences in internet industry, including over ten years

of experiences in the mobile top-up service industry.
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Independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines as set out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. The Board has
delegated to the CEO, and through him, to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the
Board has established board committees (the “Board Committees”) and has delegated
to these Board Committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference. Further details of these committees are set out in section headed “Board

Committees” in this annual report.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated to the management.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and

professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have access to all the information of the Company as well as the services
and advice of the company secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders

at all times.

The CG Code requires directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer. Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the

Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors' liabilities in

respect of legal actions against its Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has adopted a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge and industry and length of service.
The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having

due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made

upon the merits and the contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) will review
the board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend

any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally made available
to Directors in advance. The Board meets at least four times per year at approximately
quarterly intervals in accordance with Code Provision A.l.1 of the CG Code. Notice
of not less than 14 days would be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend pursuant to Code Provision A.1.3 of the CG

Code and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other board and committee meetings, reasonable notice would be given. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors
at least three days before each board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. All
Directors can access to the senior management and the joint company secretaries of the
Company at all time and upon reasonable request seek independent professional advice

at the Company's expense.

Minutes of the meetings are kept properly with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and record. Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concems raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which meeting is held. The minutes of the

board meetings are available for inspection by Directors.

The articles of association of the Company (“Articles”) contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for

approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS EERZEEHEHERLH
The attendance record of each Director at the Board, Board Committees meetings and REE_ZE—+F+_A=1t—HIEFEARD
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 3| December 2017 is set RRESEHFEEe EERECOENIME

out in the table below: REMDHIR T
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HE/ EHERY
Annual
Board  Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Meeting ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Name of Director =g B3R
EEpg 23 REZEE FMZERE BHZEEE  BFAg
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. HUANG Junmou BRHAE 404 plj) 22 NIATER I/l
Mr. YANG Hua BERE 44 NATER NATER  NATER Il
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. LI Xiangcheng FEMEE 44 NATER NATER NATES /]
Mr. XU Xinhua AETERLE 44 NATER  NATNER  NATER Il
Mr. YU Zida FERE 44 NANER  NATER  NATER I/l
Independent non-executive Directors BIYKYTES
Mr. QIAN Haomin BEREL 44 22 NIATER 33 Il
Mr. LIN Zhangxi WER LA 44 NATER pll 33 I/]
Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin HEMLL 4/4 20 2 33 I/l

Code provision A2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman should at least EELTANTAIEXA2TRE  TRER
E]T

annually hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including independent non- BHTESHFENBATEFNTES(RIEE
executive directors) without the executive directors present. For the year ended 31 VIEHTES )RV BERT e - HEC

December 2017, the Chairman met with the non-executive Directors and independent E—+tF+-RA=+—-HUIEE FEEEH
non-executive Directors without other executive Directors present to understand their M TESESNER TEIERTEZEREY

concerns and to discuss pertinent issues. FRTEFTCH THREBIEERIRED
fAl 8 o

FEREEFRAR
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as Directors of the Company and of the conduct,

business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visits to the Company's offices and meetings with senior

management of the Company.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of CG Code, Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics
will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses. According to the records of the
Company, in 2017, all Directors attended training sessions on duties and obligations
of directors of companies listed on the Stock Exchange which was conducted by the

Company's legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the key methods of attaining continuous BEZE—tH+-_A=+—HILFE K&

professional development by each of the Directors are summarised as follows: EEGREZXERMNIENEMANT
Attending Reading
courses/ regulatory
seminars materials
Name of Directors HERE/ HEEE
g e REER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. HUANG Junmou mEREE V \
Mr. YANG Hua BELE \ \
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. LI Xiangcheng PERTE \ \
Mr. XU Xinhua AR A V \
Mr. YU Zida T ESLE y v
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. QIAN Haomin BRRLE V \
Mr. LIN Zhangxi WEHE KL \ V
Ms. ZHAO Jinlin BEMLL \ \
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A4.l of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A4.2 of
the CG Code states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
and is appointed for a specific term of three years unless terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract/signed an appointment letter with the Company and is

appointed for a specific term of three years.

All appointments of Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles. In accordance with the Articles, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that

meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
laid down in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of

Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the Stock

Exchange’s website and Company's website.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, risk management and intemal control system of the Group,
oversee the audit process and select external auditors and assess their independence and

qualifications.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Zhao Jinlin, Mr. Lin Zhangxi and Mr. Qian Haomin. Ms. Zhao Jinlin is the chairlady of the
Audit Committee and she is the Company's independent non-executive Director with the

appropriate professional qualifications.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017 to
review the annual financial results and report in respect of the year ended 3| December
2016 and interim financial results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2017 as
well as significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, and the effectiveness of the Company's internal
audit function, and discussed the arrangements of the Company's annual audit work for

the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to
the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among other things, to establish, review and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; and to establish transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her

associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
being Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Lin Zhangxi and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Lin Zhangxi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings on 2| March 2017 and 22 December
2017 to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management, the

remuneration policy and remuneration structure of the Company.

The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain, provide incentive and reflect their individual performance by
a reasonable remuneration package. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors mainly includes the director's fee which is a matter
for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and responsibilities of the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors and their participation in

the Scheme.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the role and responsibilities
delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are, among other things, to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of Directors and evaluate the structure and composition
of the Board. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination Committee makes reference
to criteria including reputation of candidate for integrity, accomplishment, experience,

professional and educational backgrounds.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, being
Ms. Zhao Jinlin and Mr. Qian Haomin and one executive Director, being Mr. Huang

Junmou. Mr. Huang Junmou is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings on 21 March 2017 and 22 December
2017 to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to determine their eligibility and

discussed the re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:

®  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

®  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

®  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

®  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and

Directors; and

*  to review the Company's compliance with CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report in the annual report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a

timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cause significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going

concemn.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in the Independent

Auditors’ Report on pages 103 to 109 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal control system
of the Group and review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. A defined
management structure with specified limits of authority and responsibilities is developed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for

publications, and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

40 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

EERMBRRNER

ESHARERARRALABE_T—LF
TZAZT - HEFEORBRE - EFNE
RREEERRTEE 0N BHRFER T

ESVMAEEBEMNEHABERNEAER
TRERNE  MESEFRBERAEIHEAR
RANFELERNELREHRA -

AARBYGEMEEERGAUBRROE
BECERENAEREINEI9ERE L
ZHAIRE -

m”E&W%Eﬁ
REE-Z—tFT-AZ+—-ALFER
%%Aﬁﬁ7$%lﬂA“@&mﬂ¢ﬂ%M

WAL BRASEE T LI HESRBEN
BRrRE  BTEE &R  HllRELE

ESCARERARENREREERAREH
RE WA AR - ZEER EEEEW#

HIR AR EBKRRORR - MAREHRT
@ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁm@ﬁ%%ﬂA@ﬁ#@ﬂ
HRE - AARIDHIEEMOERRELITE
%@&ﬁEWﬂ%@%'Mﬂ%*W%ﬁﬁ%
REEE REZENSFCHARMEA M
BERBNHERETNEZR  LETERE
& RRAIRER -



Corporate Governance Report

The Company's risks are identified from operations in its established enterprise-wide
risk assessment methodologies. The Company periodically reviews each position of the
operating departments and other functional departments to identify, analyse and evaluate
the risks. The risk assessment results and the proposed internal control measures are
submitted to the senior management of the Company for review and approval. The
senior management is also responsible for supervising the effectiveness of implementation

and future execution of the risk control measurement.

The Company has an interal audit function to carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk management and
internal control systems. The results of the internal audit and review are reported to
the executive Directors and the Audit Committee. The Group has engaged Zhonghui
Anda Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) to conduct a review on the effectiveness
of the major cycles of the Group's internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2017. Such review covered material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and it did not reveal any significant defects. Zhonghui Anda
has reported major findings and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's internal audit function and is satisfied with its
adequacy and effectiveness for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Audit Committee
also reported the risk management assessment conducted by Zhonghui Anda to the

Board in the Board meeting held on 23 March 2018.

Relevant recommendations made by Zhonghui Anda have been properly followed up by

the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

During the year ended 3| December 2017, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems, and considered
the risk management and interal control systems are effective and adequate in all material

aspects in both design and operations.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to

approximately RMB 1.6 million and RMB0.6 million respectively.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Ouyang Jiejiao resigned as the joint company secretary and chief financial officer of
the Company on |3 September 2017. Following the resignation of Ms. Ouyang Jiejiao, Mr.
Wong Wai Tung was appointed as the joint company secretary and chief financial officer

of the Company on the same date.

Mr. Wong Wai Tung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling have been appointed by the Company as
the joint company secretaries of the Company. Ms. Wong Wai Ling is the assistant vice
president of a corporate services provider, SW Corporate Services Group Limited, and
assists Mr. Wong Wai Tung in company secretarial affairs. The primary corporate contact

person of Ms. Wong Wai Ling at the Company is Mr. Wong Wai Tung.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Wong Wai Tung and Ms. Wong Wai Ling
have undertaken not less than |5 hours of relevant professional training respectively in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating policies
on remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out

in note | | to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

The senior management's (including all executive Directors) remuneration for the year

ended 31 December 2017 is within the following bands:
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

The Company appointed Lego Corporate Finance Limited as the compliance adviser as
required pursuant to Rule 3A.27 of the Listing Rules. Lego Corporate Finance Limited
provided guidance and opinion to the Company in respect of the compliance with the
Listing Rules and other regulations and practice notes governing listed issuers in Hong

Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company and the Board believe that effective communication with Shareholders
and other investment community is essential for enhancing investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies, improving the level of corporate governance
transparency and strategic credibility. The Company's objectives on investor relations
are to maintain strong contacts with investors, to provide them with accurate and timely
information and to listen to Shareholders” suggestions and concerns, and answer raised

questions sincerely.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings. The chairman
of the Board, non-executive Director, independent non-executive Directors, and the
chairmen and the chairlady of all Board Committees (or their delegates) will make

themselves available at general meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The 2018 annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company will be held on Thursday, 7
June 2018.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
www.nnk.com.hk, where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's business
operations and development, financial information, corporate goverance practices and

other information are available for public access.

The Company and the Board value the views and the inputs of Shareholders and
investors. The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and Shareholders in
relation to the development of the Company to the Company's investor relations team

via email or telephone.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at
Shareholder's meeting on each substantial issue at general meetings, including the election

of individual Directors.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles, general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more Shareholders deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at 18/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong or, in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong, or in the event that the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the
Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expensed incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the

failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

44 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

RS
RIRERRED REN  ARFBRERAE
THEBEAZE(ERERERNES)RBERKA
EREBUREER -

RRBHEBRREIAERSF
@E%W%n3%*%$ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂm%i
UERRMNEMERMAR  BEE kAR
AR TF%&WIEMim%WMﬁE/@1
SERERBFREBEFL I8 HAQT
THRELRFENEE  AIRTMHRERE)
EHANBAAEMNETEEEIMBERAZE
EZEFRARKEERERERBARAN
BTERARARTRASRERNTONTH
2B RRA o REXE A EALDFMER
—ERAAUEBR(FERBANRENEE
EXMEBR  EBEREXRERARARE B
FENFR(WARATERBELRZEHRSE
R AREMBEER)  EHAFIARENTE
EEVHBRAEE  EZEERARREE
KERBRBALANEFTERADARREX
EREENTIRT D2 —HBERA - HE
EENXEER B2 BALERTER
FARBRER2 BRBIMAE - BIFERA

AERFEARAFEA ERFENERFR
AREERNESFEARAGHRNIAA
FAE ML ERNENAEIEREER

BEkZREF=EARERRERN  AARA
BRABKAENRESTEREAAGMELR
MEREMX -



Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles, no person shall, unless recommended by the
Board, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless
during the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there has been given to the
company secretary notice in writing by a member of the Company (not being the person
to be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given,
of his intention to propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed by

the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or Cayman Islands Companies Law for
Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meeting. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph headed “Procedures for

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company's
Hong Kong share registrar, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board could send their enquiries to the Company's headquarters and principal
place of business in the PRC at 5/F, Building F5, TCL International E City, No. 100
Zhongshan Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An amended and restated memorandum of association and Articles of the Company was
adopted on 14 December 2015 and took effect from the Listing Date. The Company
has not made any changes to its constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2017. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the Company's

website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control measures, the
Company understands its duties under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), and adheres to the important principle of timely publication of
the inside information. The Company abides by the “Guide on disclosure of inside
information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission, and has developed
a complete system of internal procedures and intemnal control measures for processing
and publication of information in order to ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate

disclosure of relevant information to the public and regulatory authorities.

The Company has established an inside information handling team which consists
executive Directors, chief financial officer, company secretary and investor relations to
identify, evaluate and report to the Board about any potential inside information. The
Company is required to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable
in accordance with SFO and Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company also included in its information disclosure polices a
strict prohibition on the unauthorized use of confidential or inside information. The Board
will determine further escalation and appropriate handling the dissemination of inside

information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVENANCE PRACTICES

The Board is pleased to present this environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2017, pursuant to the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Reporting Guide provided in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
(the “ESG Guide"), which sets out the Company's policies and practices in four aspects,
namely environmental protection, employment and labor practices, operating practices
and community involvement. The ESG Report is designed to allow Shareholders, investors
(including potential investors) and the public to have a more comprehensive and profound

understanding of the corporate governance and culture of the Company.

The Group is committed to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable
development. The Group strives to utilize resources efficiently and effectively in workplace
and reduce impacts on the environment; raise its social responsibility and improve well-
being of its employees; and demonstrate the Group's commitment to the corporate
social responsibility. Apart from pursuing corporate profits, the Group also took into
consideration the sustainable development of the environment, the society and corporate
governance in all aspects of the business operation of the Group, so that those standards

could be sustained.

The Board is responsible for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has
established an ESG working team to engage the management and employees across all
functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality to the
Group's business as well as the Company's stakeholder, through reviewing the Group's
operations and internal discussions. Disclosures relating to the material ESG issues
identified have been included in this ESG Report pursuant to the ESG Guide. This ESG
Report focuses on mobile top-up services business, the principal business of the Group. It

covers the operations of the Group's PRC Operating Entity, Shenzhen NNK.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group maintains communication with various stakeholders which refer to groups

NEEBESHE
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RERHERME  2RAKEIKERRAR

and individuals that materially influencing or affected by the Group's business. Through
various channels, the Group can timely access the latest request of the stakeholders
and proactively respond to their requests in order to foster the Group’s capability in

fulfilling its environmental and social responsibilities and achieving the Group's sustainable

development objectives. HIgE ST °

Stakeholders FEEEE Communications and Responses BREZE

e Customers i ®P Customers satisfaction survey EPMEEHRE
Customers feedback XPRE
Commercial communication EE3EH
Service complaint and response RERFREE

*  Shareholders/nvestors ¢ R /REH Shareholders' meeting REAE
Annual report/Interim report FiR/ Pk
Group announcement and notice SERERAE
Group websites and WeChat SE®ILR

public account WEARE

Direct communication ERER

*  Suppliers o IR Site visit and evaluation BISRE N
Contract execution BUEH
Cooperation negotiation BIEER
Suppliers evaluation system HER G R
Product quality EmEE
Corporate reputation rEREE
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R HEBRERES

Stakeholders FEHEERE Communications and Responses BRHEEZE
®  Employees o [EB Induction training N E
Regular staff training and activity EHE T RE®
Communication meeting BREE
Employee feedback mechanism 1B B R
*  Govemment and o BFKEEHM  Direct communication BEEER
Regulatory Authorities Relevant conference HEeR
Field visit AR
Compliance management BRER
Policy compliance BRAH
*  Media o Group announcement and notice SEAERAE
Interview R
Group websites and WeChat SEMLR
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e Community o i Volunteer activity EREED
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The business of the Group affects different stakeholders, and these stakeholders have
various expectations of the Group. To enhance the materiality analysis, the Group will
continue to expand the scope of stakeholders' engagement and collect a diverse range of

stakeholders’ views through various activities in the future.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
The Group understands that its daily operations could have impacts on the
environment, therefore the Group looks for ways to achieve environmental
sustainability while continuing its business growth. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to its employees. To put into
practice, the Group have implemented a series of environmental-friendly measures
in the workplace to minimize its environmental impacts. The Group seizes every
opportunity to engage its staff in supporting green initiatives in daily operations to
call for collective effort in sustaining the environment. To this end, the Group has
introduced several initiatives to improve energy efficiency, minimize greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions and enhance indoor air quality. For the year ended 3|
December 2017, the Group has complied with all relevant environmental laws and

regulations.
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Emissions

As a specialized online mobile top-up service provider in the PRC, the Company's
operations do not involve in production-related air, water and land pollution that
are regulated by applicable laws and regulations in the PRC. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Company did not produce hazardous waste or harmful
pollutants in the course of its business. The Group is concerned about the quality
and safety of the food provided to its employees and had set up its own canteen
to provide all employees with three meals a day for free on weekdays. As at 31
December 2017, the Group's canteen used a total of 232 bottles of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG") (15Kg/bottle), an increase of 22.75% from the 189 bottles
as at 31 December 2016, which was mainly due to the increase of the number of
employees in the year of 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the Company's GHG
emissions caused by using LPG was approximately 8,884.46Kg, an increase of
1,646.69Kg of GHG over the 7,237.77 Kg of GHG emissions as at 3|1 December
2016. The GHG emissions per person increased from 49.57Kg to 56.95Kg during
the year of 2017. In order to reduce the GHG emissions, the Company selected a
professional green catering company to outsource its staff canteen since December
2017. The Company has always been actively seeking various environmental
protection measures to reduce the indirect impact of business development on the

environment.
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The carbon emissions resulting from the daily operations of the Group mainly

come from the greenhouse GHG emissions generated from electricity use.

The Group also realized that transportation by any means can result in GHG
emissions. As the Group has extensive and numerous channel partners in different
regions in the PRC, travelling on business trip is also one of the major contributions
to GHG emissions. As such, the Group encourages its employees to adopt video
conferencing and teleconferencing to conduct meeting with channel partners
and suppliers and in-house meetings with officers based in other regions to avoid
unnecessary travelling and thus minimize GHG emissions. As at 3| December 2017,
due to unavoidable commercial activities, the total emissions of GHG of the Group
was 22,9059 Kg, representing a decrease of 17,759.3 Kg of GHG emissions as
compared with 40,665.20 Kg as of 31 December 2016. In addition, the Group also
encourages staff to take public transportation in order to reduce GHG emissions.
The Group has also adopted measures such as maintaining Company's vehicles and
tires status on regular basis, and switching off idle engines during long time waiting

to reduce energy consumption in order to reduce GHG emissions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Use of Resources

With the vision of protecting the planet and incorporating environmental
sustainability into its business function and processes, the Group proactively seeks
opportunities to enhance operating efficiency in workplace to reduce the use
of resources. The Group closely monitors the utilization of resources and takes

remedial actions whenever necessary.

Staff are well informed of Group's green measures through different communication
channels, such as intranet and regular meetings. The Group continuously cultivates

its staff awareness and encourages their behavioral change.

As disclosed above, several measures have been implemented to improve energy
saving in the Group's workplace. The followings are examples of energy saving

measures adopted by the Group:
- maximizing the use of natural light and energy-saving systems;
- zoning for optimal control of lighting and air-conditioning;

- using energy-saving light bulbs, installing and purchasing energy-efficient office

equipment;
- maintaining the room temperature at an average of 26 T;

- maintaining air conditioning systems and cleaning the filters of air conditioners

on a regular basis;

- switching off air conditioning systems and lighting in vacant working areas

after operation hours;
- turning off office equipment when not in use;
- switching off water dispenser after operation hours;

- putting reminder message about the importance of energy and resources

savings on or next to office equipment;
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A3

While complying with environmental laws and regulations, the Company strongly
encourages all employees to focus on energy conservation and emission reduction
in their work and reduce GHG emissions and promote indoor air quality. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group used a total of 428,744 kWh of electricity, a
decrease of 40,2984 kWh of electricity as compared with 469,042.40 kWh as at
31 December 201 6.

The Group does not involve any production and manufacturing processes,
however, the Group still persists on raising staff awareness of water conservation
and regularly checking office pipes to prevent leakage. The Group encourages
employees to save water. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
used a total of 2,246 tonnes of water, a decrease of 510 tonnes of water from as
compared with 2,756 tonnes of water used as of 31 December 2016. The water
consumption density decreased by 24% from 18.88 tonnes/person in the year
of 2016 to 14.40 tonnes/person in the year of 2017. The Group will continue to
encourage its employees to actively participate in the activities of saving water

resources within the Group and to do its best to protect water resources.

Due to the nature of business, the Group does not use any packaging material

during the course of its business.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

Waste management and reduction are crucial to conservation of the earth’s finite
resources. In order to improve waste management mechanisms, the Group has
adopted various waste reduction measures, especially in cutting down paper
consumption in the course of operation and purchase of paper made scratch top-

up cards.

The Group encourages staff to view the documents on electronic devices instead
of printing out hard copies. When printing is unavoidable, duplex printing is
defaulted and staffs are encouraged to reuse the single-sided printed papers. The
designated collection points have been set up in the workplace to facilitate paper
and toner cartridges recycling. Staff are also advised to reuse office consumables.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group used a total of 143,053 pieces
of paper, a decrease of |1.7% as compared with 161,950 pieces of paper as of 31
December 2016, a decrease of 18,897 pieces of paper. The Group will continue
to recommend green office and conserve resources. The Group will continue
to contribute to the sustainable development of mankind, while continuously

enhancing its business capabilities,.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Regarding to the Group's paper made top-up cards inventory, the Group has
chosen to purchase larger proportion of virtual top-up cards, supplemented by
a small amount of prepaid paper made top-up cards. For the year ended 3|
December 2017, the Group purchased a total of 9,504,838 pieces of paper made
top-up cards, an increase of 12.8% as compared with 8,423,453 cards for the year
ended 3| December 2016, For the already-purchased paper made top-up cards,
the Group stipulates that once the prepaid card are used, they shall be sent to the
designated collection points for paper recycling so as to reduce the waste of paper

and increase the paper recycling rate.

The Group understands that good air and water quality are vital to health. The
Group cares about its staff and therefore makes every effort to provide a healthy
workplace environment for them. The Group has implemented various measures to
maintain good indoor air quality for staff, such as regular cleaning of air-conditioning
systems and filters of air conditioners. Professional cleaning personnel are engaged

to maintain the indoor environment of workplaces.

SOCIAL

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise
and regards human resources as its corporate wealth in maintaining its leading
position in the mobile top-up service industry. To empower our staff, the Group
continuously provides on-the-job trainings and development opportunities to
enhance employees’ career progression. The Group offers competitive employment
package and benefits to attract and retain competent persons. The Group also
cherishes employees' well-being and strives to provide them with a healthy and safe

working environment.
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Bl

CHERERRS

Employment

Workforce

The Group keeps track of the updates of the laws and regulations in the PRC and
has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of
the PRC (FZE AR £ MBI 8))%) and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC (FF
= NREFIELE A EE) for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group
has entered into labor contracts with all employees to protect their legitimate
rights and interests. Recruitment is open for all qualified personnel and conducted
in a fair, just and open manner, and recruitment information is announced with the
Company's information or disclosed to the public. Recruitment and promotion
are based on the candidates’ capability instead of other factors such as gender,
race, age and religion. All employees and candidates enjoy equal opportunities and
fair treatment. The Group has established a selection and evaluation system to
optimize the allocation of human resources and internal promotion. The philosophy
of developing a wide array of talents helps to build up the overall strength of the

Group and maintaining its leading position in the industry.

The Group has also established policies and procedures regarding the dismissal of
its employees. Compensation for dismissed personnel is well settled and the Group
has strictly abided by the provision of Labor Law of the PRC (2 A R FNE
&)%), The Group will conduct interviews and conversations with dismissed
personnel to comfort their frustrations and collect their feedbacks. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group had not received any complaint or involved

in any legal proceeding related to dismissal matters.

The comprehensive workforce is essential to optimize the Group's operation.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 156 full time employees, an increase
of 7% as compared to the 146 employees as at 3|1 December 2016. The female
to male ratio is approximately 19:20. The Group's employees were allocated in
departments of research & development (26.9%), marketing sales and purchasing
(19.9%), customer services (24.4%), administration (5.8%) and others (23.0%). The
Group had a young and energetic workforce, with the majority 68.0% were aged

below 30 and the remaining were between 30 and 50.
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Analysis of 2016 and 2017 annual employee turnover rate “E-RER-ELEFEREREE
The Group's employee turnover rate in 2017 was 39.5%, which was decreased by AEENBEERDER_T—+F
| 4% as compared to the tumnover rate of 40.9% in 2016. The high turnover rate R395% BT — N F#409% /% &
mainly attributed to the intensified competition in the internet industry. 14%  MBERR D EEHNEHATT
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Benefits and Compensation

The Group endeavors to offer a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
package to attract, retain and motivate talent employees. Remuneration adjustments
are based on staffs' performance and their overall quality of work. Based on the
performance and the potential of employees as well as the macroeconomic
environment, the Group offers attractive fringe benefits, reasonable level of salary
increase and flexible individual holiday arrangements so as to ensure a balanced life

for its employees.

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group strictly abided by the provisions
of Labor Law of the PRC (F# AR HFEI%E)E) and the provisions of the
Company's staff handbook expressly specify the working hours and rest periods.
The Group adopts an eight-hour shift, five working days and the staff are also
entitled to statutory holiday. For the staff who cannot enjoy the statutory holiday
while on shift, the Group will provide overtime pay according to the relevant laws
and regulations. Apart from the usual annual leave and paid sick leave, the Group
also offers additional leave entitlements for other circumstances like marriage,
bereavement, maternity, paternity and work-related injury, etc, which allows the
staff to have flexible leave arrangement. The Group also grants certain amount of

mobile credit as birthday gifts for all employees.

Equal Opportunities

To ensure equal employment and advancement opportunities for all individuals,
the Group assesses individuals based on their experience, qualifications and abilities
when it comes to employment, remuneration and promotion. The Group's
employment practices will under no circumstances, be influenced or affected by a
candidate’s or employee's race, gender, age, disability or family status. The Group
offers equal working opportunities and discourages any kind of discrimination,

including discriminating on the basis of the personal characteristics of its employee.
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Health and Safety

The Group has committed to provide employees with a safe working environment
and pay tremendous attention to employees own health. The Group has strictly
abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of the PRC (FF
EARAMES
SR 16 ) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

J%) and the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance (T

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment. The Group is required to comply with work safety laws and
regulations imposed by the government authorities in the PRC. The Group has
implemented various occupational health and safety procedures to maintain a
safe work environment, including (i) providing guidelines for operational and
safety control procedures to all employees; (i) adopting protective measures at
its facilities; (iii) inspecting facilities regularly to identify and eliminate safety hazard;
and (iv) providing trainings to employees on safety awareness. Inspections and
management review of health and safety policies have been performed to ensure

the effectiveness of the arrangements, training and guidelines.

In addition, the Group prioritizes the health and well-being of its employees.
In order to provide employees with sufficient medical care, in addition to the
medical insurance coverage required by laws, the Group has provided pension,
unemployment, occupational injury and maternity insurance for its employees in
compliance with applicable PRC laws and regulations. As the Group's business
expands, the Group will continue to regularly review and assess its risk portfolio
and adjust its insurance coverage based on its need and industry practice. The
Group has also provided annual medical check-ups for its employees and carried

out cultural and sports activities to promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

During the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group did not encounter any
major accident during the operation which brought death of employees, or made

any of them suffer a loss of work days because of injury on job.
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B3

B4

Development and Training

The Group believes nurturing talents is the cornerstone of the Group's business
development. The Group has committed to offer different training opportunities
to its staff, to provide them with a suitable platform for career advancement and
professional development. The Group holds regular trainings for new employees
in order to build cohesion amongst new joiners as well as provide in depth
understanding of the Company's philosophy and strategies. The Group also
encourages employees to share their specialty knowledge and experience with
other departments’ colleague in order to improve everyone's comprehensive
competence and horizon. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
arranged three technical department courses, one new employee orientation, one
external training course and several small work trainings and experience exchanging
seminars. Directors and management attended requested continuous professional

training courses organized by Company's legal advisor.

The Group offers a range of training topics to facilitate it staff's professional and
personal development including training on Company's business, strategy and
communication skills. The Group also developed programs and competition to
motivate its staff to pursue continuous improvements. The Group sets up “Excellent
Employee Competition” twice every year in order to foster team cohesion and

cultivate a harmonious working environment.

Labor Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and forced labor in the Group, and is
fully committed to create a work environment which respects human rights. Staff of
human resources department audit and verify staff identity during the recruitment

process to ensure that no child labor will be employed.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of rights and interests
for employees, strictly complies with the relevant provisions of national and local
employee rights and interests. The provisions of the Company's staff handbook
expressly specifies the working hours, rest and leave, labor protection and so on to

encourage work-life balance and prevent any compulsory labor.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

B5

Bé

Supply Chain Management

The Group selects telecommunication operators, distributors of telecommunications
operators, e-commerce platform and third-party online game operators (collectively
“suppliers”), to support the business operations, and is committed as much as
possible to conduct the business with suppliers that act in a socially responsible
manner to meet the ethical expectations. As at 31 December 2017, the Company
had 281 suppliers (2016: 245). As a specialized mobile top-up service provider in
the PRC, the Group understands the importance to work closely with its supply chain
to ensure the sustainability of the Group's business. A supplier evaluation system
in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and after-sales service has been established
by the Group. The Group carries out long-term quality monitoring and conducts
regular reviews on all suppliers as well as random examination on different suppliers
to ensure sustainable quality material supplies and services. The Group will also take
into account suppliers’ reputation, their track record of high corporate standards,
expertise, capacity and etc. so as to select the qualified suppliers and appropriate
management's approval is required before entering an agreement. Such procedures

aim to support operational efficiency and segregation of duties.

Product Responsibilities

On the basis of strictly abiding by the relevant laws and regulations, the Group has
taken a variety measures to ensure the quality of service. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group was not aware of any violation of the laws and
regulations on its services (including advertising, labelling, service quality, customer
privacy protection and consumer right etc.) and any event that had material impact

on the Group.
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The Group primarily engages in providing mobile top-up services and data usage
top-up services. The Group has developed a reliable, secure and scalable platform,
007ka top-up platform, through which the Group processes mobile top-up request
received from mobile users. The Group has committed to deliver high-quality top-
up services through its 007ka top-up platform and WeChat public account to the
customers. In order to ensure delivery of high-quality top-up services, the Group
has in place a real-time automatic mechanism to monitor irregularities of top-
up results such that administrator can deal with such irregularities proactively and
enable customers to enjoy fast, reliable and convenient top-up services. The Group
provides customer services on a 24/7 basis to enhance service quality, in particular,
to PRC banks, the Group has also established a 24-hour real-time monitoring
mechanism which reports irregularities in the systems to relevant personnel so
that irregularities can be dealt proactively. The above monitoring systems allow the
Group to quickly respond to and resolve network malfunction issues to ensure the
stability and security of the network and the mobile top-up services. In addition, the
Group has also maintained a dedicated customer service team to exclusively handle

enquires or complaints from different channel partners’ customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The customer service team comprising 38 personnel and the customer hotline
numbers are posted on the websites of the channel partners and the Company's
websites. Users who use the mobile top-up services through the channel partners
can make enquires or complaints through the customer hotlines of the Company.
The Group defines complaints as customers explicit or implicit expressions of
dissatisfaction with the mobile top-up or data top-up services, which requires the
actions to resolve the problem and the response to the customers about the
solution. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group received 238
complaints from customers, decreased by 5.6% as compared with 252 complaints
for the year ended 31 December 2016. These customer's complaints are generally
associated with delays in the top-up process, unsuccessful recharges and failure
of users to receive mobile top-up results. Upon receipt of complaints from
customers, the customer service team makes preliminary judgment on the nature
of the complaints and provides instruction to guide customers to solve problems.
Unresolved complaints relating to urgent or material issues are escalated to the
relevant managers on-duty. The Group also closely monitors the feedbacks from
customers. Through collecting and analyzing customer feedbacks, the high-quality
customer service team helps to enhance customer satisfaction and loyalty. For
cases of unsuccessful mobile top-up requests, recharge of the mobile accounts for
customers or refund of payments for the mobile top-up services to customers per

their requests are usually adopted.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiIR - -HERERES

The Group emphasizes the importance of protecting the privacy of its channel
partners and customers, and has complied with relevant laws and regulations
during the collection, processing and use of customer’s personal data. Employees
have signed the non-disclosure agreement to ensure the protection of customer’s
personal data. During the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group did not
receive complaints from channel partners or customers due to unauthorized

disclosure of information.

Since the Group is principally engaged in providing mobile top-up services to
mobile users through electronic banking systems of PRC banks, offline channels and
other channels including third-party online platforms, its own websites and WeChat
public account, no massive advertising campaigns were launched by the Group. In
addition, due to the nature of the Group's business, labelling of products was not

applicable to the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Anti-corruption

The Company has strictly abided by the relevant laws and regulations such as the
Criminal Law of the PRC (FZE AR EFEIFIE), the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the PRC (FEARKFMBIR P IEE HEFE) and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of PRC (FEE AR EMEI R #%E#)E) for the year ended 31
December 2017. The Group is committed to prevent and monitor any malpractice
or unethical actions. The Group maintains and effectively implements whistle-
blowing procedures for anti-corruption and anti-fraud and is committed to promote
integrity and prevent unethical issues. The Group encourages the reporting of
suspected business irregularities and provides clear channels specifically for this

purpose.

The Group requests its staff to maintain a high level of business ethics to protect
the interests and business operations of the Group. To reinforce staff's integrity, the
Group has established the code of conduct and laid down procedures in the staff
handbook to fight against corruption, bribery, extortion and fraud. The Group has
established regulations and procedures to prevent and monitor money laundering in
the operations. All new joiners are well briefed of these regulations and procedures
during orientation and existing members can assess relevant information in the
Group's intranet to raise their awareness on anti-corruption, anti-fraud and anti-

money laundering.

When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of duty, abuse
of power, receiving bribes, staff can report to the secretariat of the Board for
investigation and resolution. The secretariat will then carry out investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator or law enforcement authority when

necessary.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiIR - -HERERES

B8

The Group is committed to adhere to the highest ethical standards. During the
year ended 3| December 2017, the Group had not been a party to any corruption,
bribery or fraud proceedings and was not aware of any pending or threatened
proceedings related to corruption against the Group or any of the Directors. The
Group will continue to comply with ethical requirements and upholds its reputation

to prevent corruption.

Community Investment

The Group has not established a specific community policy, however, social care
is deep-seated in the Group's corporate culture and the Group is committed to
its corporate responsibilities by proactively participating in community and charity
works. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group donated RMB10,000
to the China Youth Development Foundation to help to provide a needy rural
school with 1,000 plus selected books. The mini library will help children read,
cultivate their minds and improve their overall ability. Besides, the Group supports
a charity bazaar led held by China Construction Bank by purchasing 1,000 bottles of
honey from the Zaishang Village (f£_47) in Guangdong Province at RMB98,000,
with an aim to support those village people to get rid of poverty. The Group has
also placed a petty cash donation box in office to collect petty cash from its staff for

making donations to non-profit organizations, including charities and caring houses.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the provision of mobile top-up services to mobile
users in the PRC through (i) electronic banking systems of PRC banks; (i) offline channels,
including convenience stores, mobile phone stores and other third party retailer chains;
and (iii) other channels, including third-party online platforms, the Group's self-operated

websites and WeChat public account.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
principal activities of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page
['10. The financial position as at 31 December 2017 of the Group is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages Il to 112. The cash flow of the
Group during the year 31 December 2017 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows on pages | 15to | 16.

The Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group during the vear ended 3| December 2017 and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman's
Statement on pages 6 to 9. A discussion on the key financial performance indicators of the
Group for year ended 31 December 2017 is provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 10 to 18 of this annual report. The review and discussion thereof form

part of this Report of the Directors.
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Report of the Directors
EZEWE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following are among the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business of the

Group:

The Group provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
to customers of PRC banks. The Group's business depends on establishing and
maintaining relationships with PRC banks. The Group's failure to continue the
contractual relationship with existing PRC banks or enter into business relationships
with additional PRC banks in a timely manner or on favorable terms may impair the
Group's ability to continually expand its business; changes in the rate of commission
fees charged by the PRC banks may also have a significant impact on the Group's

cost of revenue and gross profit margin;

the Group's reliance on the PRC telecommunication operators and their
distributors to source mobile top-up credits, any deterioration or termination of
the Group's relationships with them may result in severe disruptions to the Group's
business operations, loss of revenues and a material and adverse effect on the
Group's financial condition and results of operations. The Group's profit margin may
also be effected by the decline in the discounts offered by PRC telecommunication

operators and their distributions in the future;

the Group's ability to grow its business depends, in part, upon policies of the PRC
telecommunication operators. If the PRC telecommunication operators decide to
continue expand mobile top-up services or cooperate with PRC banks or third-
party online platforms directly, the Group's results of operations may be materially

and adversely affected;
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the Group's business may face competition from the other mobile top-up services,
local branches of the three PRC telecommunication operators and E-commerce
platforms. If the Group or the PRC banks fail to compete effectively, the Group's
market share may decrease and the Group's business, financial condition and

prospect will be materially and adversely affected;

the Group's business and results of operations may be effected by the growth of
intemet market and mobile penetration and usage in the PRC, changes in customer
behaviors and preferences on the mobile top-up channels. Any decline in the
popularity of online top-up services in general, or the Group's failure to respond
to industry trends and customer requirements, may adversely affect the Group's

business and results of operations;

development of the PRC telecommunication industry could be negatively affected
by factors such as unfavorable government policies and changes of consumer
preferences which may decrease spending on mobile telecommunication services. If
the PRC telecommunication industry does not develop as anticipated, the Group's
business may be harmed and the Group may need to adjust its growth strategy and

the Group's results of operation may be adversely affected; and

the Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may
be influenced to a significant degree by political, economic and social conditions and

government policies in the PRC;

The details of risk factors are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” in the

prospectus of the Company dated 24 December 2015 (the "“Prospectus”).
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Report of the Directors
EZEWE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS HERERMABFELFE

For the purposes of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, BRETRELERFRAEFASTRAE HEEH

the Company's register of members will be closed during the following periods : Bif - AREBR T HEE ERERRERD

F&:

AGM RRBFAE

®  Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration No later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, | June 2018

o XERMDBP XM IAERTHRERR MER T \FAA-B(EHR) FFEE=

¢ Closure of register of members Monday, 4 June 2018 to Thursday, 7 June 2018 (both days inclusive)

o EERERRELTE R \FRANR(ES-)EZZ-\FALRA(E2HNM)
(BREEMX)

To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly stamped instruments of transfers, BABREEREAFAGTAS FHIRE -

accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the ﬁﬁﬁ%« ZEEENROBPYHERBBER
Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor ENWEDRIN g HEERAIRERNAD
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road T ESBAEDEEANRAEBALTARA
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as stated above. it EBEEIESFEABEI83FEAME

DT ITNEINTI6BEER o

SUBSIDIARIES KB AT
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note HE-_S—+E+-_A=+—HAQTNKE
31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. NEHEHREARBREN3 o
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the change in the share capital of the Company for the year ended 3|

December 2017 are set out in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserve of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2017 are set out in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2017, calculated under the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately RMB4.1 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31

December 2017 are set out in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CHANNEL PARTNERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 3| December 2017, the gross transaction value derived from
the Group's five largest channel partners accounted for approximately 52.1% of the
Group's total gross transaction value. The Group's largest channel partner contributed to

approximately 25.5% of the Group's total gross transaction value.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the cost of sourcing from Group's five
largest suppliers who are telecommunication operators and distributors accounted for
approximately 53.7% of the Group's total sourcing cost. The cost of sourcing from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 16.6% of the Group's total sourcing

cost.

As far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors nor his/her close associates and
none of the Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors possessing over 5%
of the interest in the capital of the Company) possessed any interest in the Group's five

largest channel partners and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors
EZEWE

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Relationships with Employees

The Group believes that employees are its greatest assets. The Group believes that
a good working environment promotes employees’ physical and psychological well-
being. The Group provides on-the-job training and career development opportunities
to its employees to enhance staff professional skills and retain talents. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary

adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Relationships with Channel Partners

The Group’s mobile top-up business consists of mobile top-up services through (i)
electronic banking systems of PRC banks; (i) offline channels, including convenience
stores, mobile phone stores and other third party retailer chains; and (iii) third-party online

platforms, Group's self-operated websites and Group's WeChat public account.

The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services through electronic banking systems
of PRC banks and the gross transaction value derived through electronic banking systems
accounted for approximately 53.1% of the total gross transaction value in 2017. The
Group maintained long-term cooperative relationships with PRC banks as a result of the
Group's satisfactory service quality, strong brand recognition and reputation and leading
market position. The Group had an average of approximately eight years of business
relationship with the five largest state-owned commercial banks. The Group worked with
62 PRC banks, including the five largest state owned commercial banks and 10 of the 12

nation-wide joint stock commercial banks up to the end of 2017.

To complement our online sales channels, the Group also provides mobile top-up services
through offline channels (convenience stores, mobile phone stores and other third party
retailer chains). In 2017, the Group cooperated with approximately 50,110 offline channel

partners to expand our network coverage and our mobile user base.
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The Group also utilized other channels (third-party online platforms, Group's websites and
its WeChat public account) to provide mobile top-up services. The Group expected the
transaction volume from other channels will continuously increase in the future due to the

development of the online platforms.

Relationships with Customers

The Group primarily provides mobile top-up services to mobile users, who are customers
of the Group's channel partners, including PRC banks, offline channel partners and other
channel partners. In other words, customers of the Group's channel partners are the
Group's indirect customers. During the year ended 3| December 2017, the number of
mobile users who used the Group's services was approximately 82.9 million and the five

largest customers collectively contribute less than 30% of the gross transaction value.

Relationships with Suppliers

The Group primarily sources mobile top-up credits from PRC telecommunication
operators and their distributors. For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group
had business relationships with around 281 suppliers. The Group maintained long term
relationship with most of suppliers, and the Group's five largest suppliers had an average

of approximately seven years of business relationships with the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and as at the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Junmou (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. LI Xiangcheng

Mr. XU Xinhua

Mr. YU Zida
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Report of the Directors
EZEWE

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIN Zhangxi

Mr. QIAN Haomin

Ms. ZHAQ Jinlin

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles, Mr. Li Xiangcheng, Mr. Xu Xinhua and Mr.
Yu Zida will retire in the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, have offered themselves to
be re-elected and re-appointed at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out

on pages |9 to 26 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company and
is appointed for a specific term of three years commencing from | January 2018 unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the executive

Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a specific term of three years commencing from 24 June 2017 unless
terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing served by either party on the

other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on 3 December 2015. Each of these letters of appointment is for an

initial term of three years commencing from 25 November 2015.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set
out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and recommending to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the chairman and chief

executive officer.

There was no service contract entered into/appointment letter signed by the Company
and any Directors to be re-elected in the forthcoming AGM which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors independent.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest paid individuals for the
year ended 3| December 2017 are set out in note || to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the emolument policy of the Company is set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 27 to 46 of this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended
31 December 2017.

Directors' remuneration is subject to Shareholder’s approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties
and responsibilities, the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. No Directors, or any of their respective associates,
was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration for the year ended 3| December
2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” of this annual report, no Director or an entity
connected with a Director has or had a material beneficial interest, directly or indirectly, in
any transaction and arrangement or contract of significance subsisting as at 31 December

2017 or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no Directors or their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business which were in competition or were likely to

compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Group.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) or their subsidiary has or had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for
the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the group to which the company

or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 3| December 2017.

COMPLIANCE OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into a deed of non-competition
(“Non-Competition Deed”) with Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Li Xiangcheng,
Mr. Xu Xinhua, Fun Charge Technology Limited (“Fun Charge Technology"), Happy
Charge Technology Limited (“Happy Charge Technology™), Cool Charge Technology
Limited (“Cool Charge Technology") and Enjoy Charge Technology Limited (“Enjoy
Charge Technology"”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) on 23 September
2015, under which the Controlling Shareholders jointly and severally agreed not to,
whether as principal or agent whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including through
any associate, subsidiary, partnership, join venture or other contractual arrangement of
theirs) and whether for profit or otherwise, carry on, engage, invest, participate or hold
any right or be interested in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, or is likely to be in competition,
directly or indirectly, with the business referred to in the Prospectus that is carried on or

contemplated to be carried on by any member of the Group.

Notwithstanding the above, the foregoing restrictions do not preclude any of the
Controlling Shareholders from having any interest in shares of not more than 5% in any
company which is or whose holding company is listed on any recognized stock exchange
even though the business carried out by such company is or is likely to be in competition
with the business, provided that the aggregate number of shares held by the Controlling
Shareholders do not exceed 5% of the issued shares of such company and none of the
Controlling Shareholders is a director of such company or is entitled to appoint any

director of such company.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken in the Non-Competition Deed that
during the term of the Non-Competition Deed, if a new business opportunity is made
available to any Controlling Shareholder or its/his respective associates, such Controlling
Shareholder will or will procure that its/his associates to notify the Company in writing
and provide to the Company all information that is reasonably necessary for the Company
to consider whether or not to pursue such business opportunity. For details of the Non-
Competition Deed, please refer to the section headed "Relationship with Controlling

Shareholders- Deed of Non-Competition™ in the Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders confirming
their compliance with the Non-Competition Deed for disclosure in this annual report for
the year ended 3| December 2017. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the compliance and enforcement status of the Non-Competition Deed based
on the confirmations and information provided by the Controlling Shareholders and the
Company, and are of the view that as far as they can ascertain, they are not aware that
the Controlling Shareholders have not abided by the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed for the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interest or short positions of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which would be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or
which would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code were as follows:
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Long Position in the ordinary shares of the Company REAABEBRINHER
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Number of capital®
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held HERTRAE
BB 5t ERME FEROHE BREDLO
Mr. Huang Junmou® Interest in controlled corporation 94,500,000 22.77%
RERRAED SELERER
Mr. Yang Hua® Interest in controlled corporation 63,000,000 15.18%
BEERED RELERR
Mr. Li Xiangcheng® Interest in controlled corporation 56,100,000 13.52%
FERELO SEAE RS
Mr. Xu Xinhua® Interest in controlled corporation 26,400,000 6.36%
RPRTESRA O SELERER
Notes: BisE
(1) Mr. Huang Junmou beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Fun Charge Technology. By () EEFLEEEHHESFun Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou is deemed to be interested in 94,500,000 Shares held BRI « RIBESF KGR - =EE
by Fun Charge Technology. 55 A 448 BB Fun Charge Technology 75 A HY
94,500,000 A {7+ R A #E s
(2)  Mr. Yang Hua beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Happy Charge Technology. By ) BEFREE @S Happy Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yang Hua is deemed to be interested in 63,000,000 Shares held by H 2R - RIFFZ REBERA - 5EE
Happy Charge Technology. HE AR B Happy Charge Technology 75 5 )
63,000,000 et A 4 o
(3) M. Li Xiangcheng beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Cool Charge Technology. By B) FEKEEEZBES Cool Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Xiangcheng is deemed to be interested in 56,100,000 Shares held B2 EBRA o RIEEF RIEEE] - T2
by Cool Charge Technology. F A AR B Cool Charge Technology #5745 )
56,100,000 A7 b A #E A o
(4)  Mr. Xu Xinhua beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Enjoy Charge Technology. By (4)  FPETES 4R Enjoy Charge Technology
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Xinhua is deemed to be interested in 26,400,000 Shares held by BRI o RIFFE S LG R - FHE
Enjoy Charge Technology. 5% 4 #2 #% & 7 Enjoy Charge Technology # B
#) 26,400,000 7 7 A e
(5)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share G) BEALIE-E—tHE+-A=+—H

capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2017.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which was required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following persons
(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed or taken
to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which are
required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of

SFO were as follows:
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Number of Approximate

Shares or percentage of

securities issued share

held capital ©

Substantial shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest BERGH HERTRAE

FERR 5 ERtE EHHE A SER A

Fun Charge Technology!" Beneficial owner 94,500,000 22.77%
BREBA

Happy Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 63,000,000 15.18%
BREBA

Cool Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 56,100,000 13.52%
BERBEAA

Mr. Huang Shaowu® Interested in controlled corporation 60,000,000 14.46%

HMREE® REEBER

China Charge Technology Limited® Beneficial owner 60,000,000 14.46%
BREBA

Enjoy Charge Technology® Beneficial owner 26,400,000 6.36%
BERBEAA
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Notes:

Mr. Huang Junmou is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Fun
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Junmou is deemed to be interested in
94,500,000 Shares held by Fun Charge Technology.

Mr. Yang Hua is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Happy
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yang Hua is deemed to be interested in
63,000,000 Shares held by Happy Charge Technology.

Mr. Li Xiangcheng is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Cool
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Xiangcheng is deemed to be interested in
56,100,000 Shares held by Cool Charge Technology.

Mr. Huang Shaowu is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of China
Charge Technology Limited (“China Charge Technology"). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang
Shaowu is deemed to be interested in 60,000,000 Shares held by China Charge Technology.

Mr. Xu Xinhua is the director and beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of Enjoy
Charge Technology. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Xinhua is deemed to be interested in
26,400,000 Shares held by Enjoy Charge Technology.

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's total issued share
capital of 415,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2017.

As at 3| December 2017, no Shareholders has agreed to waive or waived any dividends.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company's Directors are not aware of any person who will

have an interest or short position in Shares or underlying Shares which would be required

to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

RZE—+F+-_A=+—H BERRRAE

ERBELTEREENLE &M A Fun Charge
Technology 8 & #f IR 28 » 1R 1% & 7 & H]
BIED - BEFEERR BN Fun Charge
Technology £ 15 #994,500,000 % % 17 7 & 5
e o

5 3 L BE E W E % % A Happy Charge

Technology I 2 IR A - RIBEF 5 K HIE
B 5 5 % & R AR B H Happy Charge
Technology £ 5 63,000,000 % % 17 7 & 5
it -

ZTEREERESWEZRAA Cool Charge
Technology I 2 R A - RIBEHE 5 K HIE
&l - 2 = B 5 4 1R /5 1 Cool Charge
Technology £ 5 56,100,000 % % 17 7 & 5
it -

ERBREEREFLE % BChina
Charge Technology Limited ([ China Charge
Technology |) ) % BB & 7K o 18 4% 38 75 & 1]
E&P - BRI LR AR China Charge
Technology £ 5 960,000,000 f% % 17 7 # &

T ELEREF U E 5 B Enjoy Charge
Technology I 2 R A - RBEFHF K HE
0] - 53 5 & AR R B Enjoy Charge
Technology £ 5 926,400,000 f% % 17 # # &

E

1 o

BEFTA R —E—+F+—B=+—8
AR E 2 EE BT 415,000,000 BAAA 31

s
=B o
i

MEXERETEBS -

RAEABEEIN ARAEFL AL
AL BRED SEBRD T EEREES LY
BEEFIEXVEELR3D BN EXARARF
R R BOEERAR



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme prepared in accordance with Chapter |7 of the
Listing Rules on 14 December 2015 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) as defined in the Scheme to
recognize and acknowledge their contribution to the Group and motivate them to higher

levels of performance.

Certain provisions of the Scheme were amended and approved in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 November 2016, the definition of Eligible
Participants in the Scheme was amended to include the advisors, consultants, suppliers,
customers, distributors, business partners and such other persons who, in the opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries as participants eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to Eligible Participants options
(the "Option(s)") to subscribe for Shares subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in

the Scheme.

()  Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is established to recognize and acknowledge the
contributions that Eligible Participants had or may have made to the Group. The
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to achieve the objective of attracting and
retaining high caliber Eligible Participants to motivate the Eligible Participants to

higher levels of performance and to promote the success of the Group’s business.
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Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant options to:

(i) any full-time employees of the Company or its subsidiaries;

(i) any executive or non-executive Directors (including independent non-

executive Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries; and

(i) the advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors, business partners
and such other persons who, in the opinion of the Board, will contribute or

have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Acceptance of an offer of Options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the grantee and
to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document constituting acceptances
of the Options duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received
by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such payment shall
in no circumstances be refundable. Any offer to grant an Option to subscribe for
Shares may be accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for which it
is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares
on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly
stated in the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the Opinion.
To the extent that the offer to grant an Option is not accepted by any prescribed

acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.
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(iv)

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be granted

under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the company

must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the total number of Shares issued on 7

January 2016, being 40,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 9.64% of the

Company's issued share capital as at the date of this annual report, excluding

for this purpose Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to Options

which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (or any other

share option schemes of the Company). Subject to the issue of a circular by the

Company and the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such

other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board

may:

(i)

refresh this limit at any time to [0% of the Shares in issue as at the date of

the approval by our Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board. The circular issued by the Company to the
Shareholders shall contain a generic description of the specified Eligible
Participants who may be granted such Options, the number and terms of
the Options to be granted, the purpose of granting Options to the specified
Eligible Participants with an explanation as to how the Options serve
such purpose, the information required under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to the effect of alterations to
capital, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time
shall not exceed 30% of our Shares in issue from time to time. No options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the Scheme)

if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the Options granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible
Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of Options in excess of

this 1% limit shall be subject to:

() theissue of a circular by the Company containing the identity of the Eligible
Participant, the numbers and terms of the Options to be granted (and
Options previously granted to such participant) the information as required
under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of
the Listing Rules; and

(i) the approval of the Company's Shareholders in general meeting and/or
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time
with such Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise
price) of Options to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board meeting at which the
Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible Participant shall be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the subscription

price of the Shares.

Option Period

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at
any time after the date upon which the Option is deemed to be granted and
accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during
which an Option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no Option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. No Option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10

years from the date of its adoption.
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(vii)  The subscription price per Share (vi) BRBROAHIBE

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted IR R B w0 A E B AR IE P K

under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall RONNAEEBEHEZS2RBER

determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of: EEZBERIAGERTIEENRS
%

() the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock () PIEERRERLRBERAE R
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant in respect of the BRI B AR AR D FE B X PTHY
relevant Options; WmiE

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated iy BEFRLEHALERSBBRZM
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading days BRBEBRMIIBMORHERR
immediately preceding the date of grant or where the Company has been FRESFIMTHE - AR R L
listed for less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the TREERSA - HBITEEBE
closing price; and Wi &

(i) the nominal value of the Shares. (i)  RAE(E o

(viii) Remaining life of the scheme (viii) TEISRTER
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on |4 FEEZE-RFET_ATHBRI0
December 2015. FRNEMBER -

Since the adoption of the Scheme and up to the date of this annual report, no Option BRMGTEEREERFRAE  HERE
had been granted, exercised, lapsed nor cancelled under the Scheme. IR 1T KRB IRE -

For details of the Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Statutory and General AR EINFS - F2HBRERNSODEE
Information - F. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. R—MRER —F BIRIE S |5 -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Contractual Arrangements

The Company is primarily engaged in, through Shenzhen NNK, the provision of mobile
top-up services and data usage top-up services (the “Principal Business”), which is
considered to be value-added telecommunications services, a sector where foreign
investment is subject to significant restrictions under PRC laws and regulations. Accordingly,
the Company, as foreign investors, cannot directly hold controlling interest in Shenzhen
NNK;, the Company's PRC Operating Entity, which holds certain licenses and permits
required for the operation of the Company's principal business. As a result, the Company's
wholly foreign-owned enterprise (the “WFOE"), Daily Charge Technology (Shenzhen)
Ltd. (“Daily Charge Shenzhen"), entered into a series of contractual arrangements
with Shenzhen NNK, the Company’s PRC Operating Entity, and its shareholders (the
“Contractual Arrangements”) in order to conduct the Principal Business in the PRC and
to exercise effective control over the operations of, and enjoy all economic benefits of,
the Company's PRC Operating Entity. The series of the Contractual Arrangements as a
whole allow the financial performance and economic benefits of the business of Shenzhen
NNK to be included in the financial information of the Company as if the Company is the
parent company of Shenzhen NNK. Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, Shenzhen
NNK has an obligation to pay the consulting and technical supporting services fees to
WFOE and WFOE has legal rights to retain such fees as its revenue, and the Company is
able to acquire the entire profit (including the retained eamings) of Shenzhen NNK under

the terms of the Contractual Arrangements.

Shenzhen NNK is owned as to 31.5% by Mr. Huang Junmou, 21% by Mr. Yang Hua,
18.7% by Mr. Li Xiangcheng, 8.8% by Mr. Xu Xinhua and 20% by Mr. Huang Shaowu
(collectively, the “Registered Shareholders"). Daily Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and
the Registered Shareholders, as the case may be, entered into the following agreements as
at 31 December 2017

The management and operation agreement dated 4 March 2015 and its
supplemental agreement dated 16 April 2015 entered into among Daily Charge
Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to which
Daily Charge Shenzhen agreed to provide to Shenzhen NNK and its subsidiaries
management and operation services. Pursuant to the management and operation
agreement, Shenzhen NNK shall pay to Daily Charge Shenzhen a service fee that
equals to 100% of the annual revenue of Shenzhen NNK after deducting costs
and expenses (except the service fee) incurred during the course of management
and operation of Shenzhen NNK and any taxes, the prior-year loss (if any) and
contribution of social insurance and housing provident fund by Shenzhen NNK in

any given year.
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The exclusive option agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to
which the Registered Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted an
exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge Shenzhen to
elect to purchase, when permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part
of the equity interests in Shenzhen NNK from the Registered Shareholders itself
or through its designated person(s). Such designated person(s) shall be appointed
by Daily Charge Shenzhen in its sole discretion. The transfer price of the relevant
equity interests shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under PRC law,
and the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to return in full the consideration

received in relation to such transfer of equity interests to Daily Charge Shenzhen.

The entrustment agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily Charge
Shenzhen, Shenzhen NINK and the Registered Shareholders, with an annexure of
the power of attorey dated 4 March 2015 executed by each of the Registered
Shareholders in favour of Daily Charge Shenzhen and/or its designated person(s).
Pursuant to the entrustment agreement and the powers of attorney annexed
thereto, each of the Registered Shareholders irrevocably agreed to authorize
Daily Charge Shenzhen or its designated person(s) to exercise all of his rights and
powers as shareholder of Shenzhen NNK, including the rights to convene and
attend shareholders” meetings, to exercise voting rights in shareholders’ meetings,
to appoint and dismiss directors and supervisors, to decide on any acquisition or
disposal of his equity interest in Shenzhen NNK or the winding-up or dissolution
of Shenzhen NNK; to file documents with relevant government authorities or
regulatory bodies, and to exercise such other shareholders’ rights as stipulated

under the articles of association of Shenzhen NNK.
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4. The equity pledge agreement dated 4 March 2015 entered into among Daily
Charge Shenzhen, Shenzhen NNK and the Registered Shareholders, pursuant to
which the Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge all of their respective equity
interests in Shenzhen NNK to Daily Charge Shenzhen to secure performance of
all their obligations and the obligations of Shenzhen NNK under the management
and operation agreement, the exclusive option agreement and the entrustment
agreement underlying the Contractual Arrangements. Under the equity pledge
agreement, if Shenzhen NINK declares any dividends during the term of the pledge,
Daily Charge Shenzhen is entitled to receive all dividends or other income arising
from the pledged equity interests, if any. If any of the Registered Shareholders
or Shenzhen NNK breaches or fails to fulfil the obligations under any of the
aforementioned agreements, Daily Charge Shenzhen, as the pledgee, will be

entitled to dispose of the pledged equity interests, entirely or partially.

5. The exclusive intellectual property purchase option agreement dated 4 March
2015 entered into between Shenzhen NNK and Daily Charge Shenzhen, pursuant
to which Shenzhen NNK agreed to irrevocably and unconditionally grant an
exclusive option to Daily Charge Shenzhen to purchase certain of Shenzhen NNK's
intellectual properties, including but not limited to trademarks, patents, domain
names and copyright and whether registered or unregistered, entirely or partially, at

the minimum purchase price permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.

The detailed terms of which are set out in the section headed “History, Reorganization

and Corporate Structure- Contractual Arrangements” of the Prospectus.
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In addition, the Registered Shareholders granted the individual appointed by WFOE,
to exercise their shareholder's rights, including without limitation, to declare, receive
or decline the dividends or distribution. In the event that the Registered Shareholders
receive any dividends or distribution of assets declared by Shenzhen NNK; the Registered
Shareholders are required to retumn the dividend or distribution of assets so received to
WEFOE. Therefore, WFOE controls the management and board of directors of Shenzhen
NNK and is able to acquire the entire profit generated from Shenzhen NNK under
the Contractual Arrangements. Apart from the above, there was no new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group and the PRC
Operational Entity during the year ended 31 December 2017. There was no material
change in the Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances during the year ended
31 December 2017. None of the contracts mentioned above has been unwound during
the year ended 31 December 2017 as none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of

the contracts under the Contractual Arrangements has been removed.

Set out below are certain key financial information of Shenzhen NNK as prepared in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards during the year ended 31 December

2017
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2017
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Total assets

81,421
440,073

The Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that the
Contractual Arrangements are (i) fundamental to the Group's legal structure and business
operations; and (i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's

Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter [4A

of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Group.

EZ(BRBUFATES)RA  AHOTH()
RASEZARBREBLENAR LA
WLEHDE-RARGFINAEE-REAE
EBBEPIL BRATYAE  UNAARA
PR BB M o

ARFERAKEREHERSET
FTOAZTHNKERTE °

EHRR

FEREEFRAR
2017 R




Report of the Directors
ESEHRE

Waiver from Stock Exchange and Annual Renew

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter [4A
of the Listing Rules; (i) the requirement of setting a maximum aggregate annual value,
ie. an annual cap, for the fees payable to Daily Charge Shenzhen under the Contractual
Arrangements; and (iii) the requirement of limiting the term of the Contractual
Arrangements to three years or less, for so long as the Company's shares are listed on

the Stock Exchange subject to certain conditions as disclosed on pages 204 to 205 of the

Prospectus.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS AND
THE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO MITIGATE THE RISKS

Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

HENZHRRNER

BRFHRREERHN
BRREREH#RE  RBEARAMBRN AR

FrEmUBTHRRERE04E205EFHEE
KR E M - BRI ERERIRETIUATEER
() EMRAUBTHAZENAENELRRAE
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

A D F T RER A AR AR

If the PRC government finds that the agreements that establish the
structure for operating the Company’s business in the PRC do not
comply with PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their
interpretations change in the future, the Company could be subject to
severe penalties or be forced to relinquish the Company's interests in

those operations.

fisf o B R AT 3R iR LA A AR B AR RS R R IB O 165 ﬁé
RZERER T ERIERBAREMNE - ARE AR

HBERTIBENENABER L -

The Company's Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing operational control as direct ownership and the Company's
PRC Operating Entity or its shareholders may fail to perform their

obligations under the Company's Contractual Arrangements.

ARRNANTH AT NER AR ARG 21 - BX

ARMPEELERRERRUERBBIRENARAGOLH
THE -
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The Directors will closely monitor the latest development of the
existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations (such as Draft
Foreign Investment Law), and will take measures to ensure that the
Company is under the control of PRC investors so as to comply with

relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.

ESRENERRARARNER O T EERIER (WO EE
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According to the entrustment agreement and powers of attorney,
equity pledge agreement and the management and operation
agreement, the arbitration tribunal may decide compensation for the
equity interests or property ownership of PRC Operating Entity or
their shareholders, decide enforceable remedy or demand a bankrupt
on PRC Operating Entity or their shareholders for relevant business
or enforceable asset transfer. Any party is entitled to request the

competent court to execute the arbitration award when it comes into

effect.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENRFERRNER
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

ADF T RER Y AR AR 1

The Company may lose the ability to use assets held by its PRC
Operating Entity that are material to the operation of the Company's
business if the Company's PRC Operating Entity declares bankruptcy or

becomes subject to a dissolution or liquidation proceeding.

MAARMTRLL ERE FHENEERYSERES - AL
AT m R AE L RRAE M A A AL ENEEEE
AR -

The Company's Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and additional taxes may be imposed. A
finding that the Company owes additional taxes could substantially

reduce the Company's net income and the value of the investment.

PERBSEE A EEE AR BN A N TR BEBUEIMER o fid
FRARAHRBING - BRI AR DA AR NRAFE R
BEE-

Pursuant to the exclusive option agreements, in the event of a
mandatory liquidation required by the laws of PRC, the Registered
Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally granted an exclusive
option to Daily Charge Shenzhen which entitles Daily Charge Shenzhen
to elect to purchase, when permitted by the then applicable PRC
laws, all or any part of the equity interests in Shenzhen NNK from the
Registered Shareholders itself or through its designated person(s). Such
designated person(s) shall be appointed by Daily Charge Shenzhen in
its sole discretion. The transfer price of the relevant equity interests
shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws and
the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to return in full the
consideration received in relation to such transfer of equity interests to
Daily Charge Shenzhen.

RIEBRBRESR  fHPEZEERBHEE  BLRRTAIM
HRERER T RRAMBRIBRELRE - B FRATRR

N EERERTEZEAMNERLT - BITRBBREEEAL
HECRRBERNFERNDHREMED A - ZIEEALH
BAXRFARBR AR 2EREEE - ARRENERES AT AR
RHFANKEBEE  ABTRRDAHBERERMARTRIER

YRR RE -

Having considered (i) the tax compliance certificate issued by the
relevant tax authorities; and (ii) that the Company has not encountered
any interference or encumbrances from any PRC tax authority or other
government authorities to the Contractual Arrangements, the Directors
are of the view that the Contractual Arrangements are not likely to be
challenged by the PRC tax authority and other government authorities.
BER()EBRBREZHNARARER R ARARER
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

HEENTHRRNRR AR E RN R R I
The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity may have  (a) ~ The independent non-executive Directors will review, on an

conflicts of interest with the Company, which may materially and

adversely affect the Company's business.

AARPELLERORRATREARTANEER - EAaHA
RENEBHERENTNEE -
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annual basis, the compliance with and enforcement of the Non-
Competition Deed that the Company entered into with the
Controlling Shareholders on 23 September 2015;
BUNRTEESRRFERHNARABERBRN _T—1F
NAZ = BRI A BEZRIF0OE T RBTER

each of the Controlling Shareholders undertakes to provide all
information necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and professional advisors of the
Company with regard to the compliance with and enforcement
of the Non-Competition Deed;

PR E BRI EBY R TEERA R A EX B
HABRFRBETRATERETFEENM S BLENM
BEH

each of the Controlling Shareholders will disclose decisions
on matters reviewed by our independent non-executive
Directors of the Company related to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Non-Competition Deed in the annual report
of, or by way of announcement; and

ERBRRE BERERIARE N ARBEB LM TESMN
ENARETROTIBRFLENEEMELAORE - R
the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual declaration on
compliance with their undertaking under the Non-competition
Deed in the corporate governance report in Company's annual
report.

EERRERARBFRANCEE aRETHRETER TR
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements
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Mitigation actions taken by the Company

ADF T RER Y AR AR 1

The Contractual Arrangements between the Company's WFOE
and the Company's PRC Operating Entity may subject the Group to
increased income tax due to the different income tax rates applicable
to the Company's WFOE and the PRC Operating Entity and adversely

affect the Company's results of operations.

EEEC BRRALFSMNABE LR RTEREEBOMEHN R

ARFRINABECRARARNTEEEEE ZRNGH
?T? EEREENMEREMIEARANELREEETHY
@,

The Company conducts its business operation in the PRC through its
PRC Operating Entity by way of the Contractual Arrangements, but
certain terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable

under PRC law.

AREBERTREEERNNTHN T AETERARERE
RN ZHNE T R AR BERRHIHT o

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, Shenzhen NNK
was qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprise in September
2014 and as a result, enjoys a preferential enterprise income tax
rate of 5% as disclosed in note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Shenzhen NNK would use its reasonable endeavours to
take all necessary actions to maintain its qualification as High and New
Technology Enterprise in order to continue to enjoy a reduced income
tax rate of 15%. The WFOE was accredited as a software enterprise
in January 2016 and therefore is entitled to an income tax exemption
for two years starting from the first profitable year and an income tax
rate of 12.5% after a 50% reduction for the subsequent three years.
The WFOE would use its reasonable endeavours to take all necessary
actions to maintain its qualification as software enterprise.
REFECEAENE  RNFERR_Z-NFAARBERD
MRS ALZAREMBREMT 0 REN I5%BED
EMGEHHRE - RNFFERHBESESNRR—ILETE
DNRFEEERRTE /B RMEROMA - {TMAEZH 5%
BMRFEHE - MEBELER T —RF-ARRAREMHL
X ALAEREEENFEEMEZTHEMERALRNER
ZERBFNAEHRER 25% 0% - IEBELENBRARY
NEB—LBTHRBARFLFEE -

The Contractual Arrangements contain provisions to the effect that
the arbitral body may award remedies over the shares and/or assets of
the Company's PRC Operating Entity, injunctive relief and/or assets of
the Company's PRC Operating Entity. These agreements also contain
provisions to the effect that courts of competent jurisdictions are
empowered to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal. Any party is entitled to
request the competent court to execute the arbitration award when it
comes into effect.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

RENRERRNER

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

ADF TR AR AR 1 e

If the Company exercises the option to acquire equity ownership of
the PRC Operating Entity, the ownership transfer must be approved
or filed with PRC governmental authorities and is subject to taxation,

which may result in substantial costs.

EARATEERERETELEERORERFE  BAGHES
FURLTEHARELEXBER  YBRMKR  ERELEX
A

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

94

Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, Daily Charge Shenzhen
(or its designee) has the exclusive right to purchase all or any part of
the equity interests in the Company's PRC Operating Entity from the
respective shareholders for the minimum price permitted under the
then applicable PRC laws. The equity interest transfer is subject to the
approval from or filings with Ministry of Commerce of the PRC (the
“MOFCOM"), Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of PRC
(the “MIIT") and/or their local competent branches. According to the
exclusive option agreement, the transfer price of the relevant equity
interests shall be the minimum purchase price permitted under PRC
law and the Registered Shareholders have undertaken to retumn in full
the consideration received in relation to such transfer of equity interests
to Daily Charge Shenzhen. In addition, the equity interest transfer
price may be subject to review and tax adjustment by the relevant tax
authority. The shareholders of the Company's PRC Operating Entity
will be subject to PRC individual income tax on the difference between
the equity interest transfer price and the then current registered capital
of the Company's PRC Operating Entity. The shareholders of the
Company's PRC Operating Entity will pay, after deducting any such tax,
the remaining amount to Daily Charge Shenzhen under the Contractual
Arrangements. The amount to be received by Daily Charge Shenzhen
may also be subject to enterprise income tax.
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For details of the risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements, please refer to
the section headed “Risk Factors-Risks Relating to Our Contractual Arrangement” in the

Prospectus.

Pursuant to Rule [4A55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions under the Contractual Arrangements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions have been entered into:
(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant arrangements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a

whole.

The independent non-executive Directors have also confirmed that (i) the transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2017 have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Contractual Arrangement, have been
operated so that the revenue generated by the Company's Operating Entity has been
substantially retained by Daily Charge Shenzhen; (i) no dividends or other distributions
have been made by the Company's PRC Operating Entity to the holders of its equity
interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group;
and (iii) there were no new contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced between the

Group and the PRC Operating Entity during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Report of the Directors
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditor of
the Company to carry out procedures in relation to the Contractual Arrangements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work performed, the auditors of

the Company have provided a letter to the Board confirming that:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company to

believe that the Contractual Arrangements have not been approved by the Board;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors of the Company to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements under the Contractual Arrangements

governing such transactions; and

(i) nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors of the Company to
believe that dividends or other distributions have been made by Shenzhen NNK to

their equity interest holders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other than
those transaction headed “Connected Transactions” above, none of them constitutes a

connected transaction required for disclosure under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions mentioned in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements are not continuing connected transactions which are subject to annual
reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, hence there is no
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for such

transactions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

As a specialized online transaction service provider, the Group's business do not involve
in production-related air, water and land pollutions which are regulated by the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC. No hazardous waste was produced by the Group in its

course of business in year ended 3| December 2017.

The Group complies with the relevant laws and regulations in environmental protection
and impact on the environment has always been a major focus of the Group. The
conscientious use of resources and adoption of best practices across the Group's business
operation underlies its commitment to protect the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to
the employees. The Group encourages all employees to be eco-friendly and participate in
energy and resources saving, such as encouraging duplex printing and reuse of single-sided
printed papers, saving water and electricity to reduce energy consumption. The Group will
continuously make efforts to put emphasis on environmental protection and sustainable

development.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and operating in
compliance with the laws and integrity through abidance by relevant laws and regulations,
industry regulations and business ethics. For the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company had not been and were not a party
to any material legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Company was not
aware of any pending or threatened legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings against
the Company or any of the Directors which could have a material adverse effect on the

Company's operations or financial condition.
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Report of the Directors
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Workplace Quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the basis
of personal characteristics. The Group has employee handbooks outlining terms and
conditions of employment, expectations for employees' conduct and behavior, employees'
rights and benefits. The Group also establishes and implements policies that promote a

harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise and regards
human resources as its corporate wealth. The Group provides on-the-job training and
development opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression. Through
different trainings, staff's professional knowledge in corporate operations, occupational and
management skills are enhanced. The Group has also organized wide range of activities for
employees, such as outings, professional skills sharing class and New Year celebration to

promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment.
Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. The Group prioritizes the health and well-being of staff.
In order to provide employees with adequate medical coverage, staff are entitled to free

medical check-ups, in addition to medical insurance required by laws.

Training and Development

The Group is committed to the professional and personal development and growth of all
employees and considers training and development a continual process. Training courses
are provided to help employees develop and maintain consistency, proficiency and
professionalism. Structured training programs including courses, seminars and workshops
are offered to staff at all levels with the objective of grooming and unleashing their full
potential, organizational development and facilitating team synergies. Employees are
encouraged to take advantage of these programs to equip themselves with the skills and

knowledge for expanded career opportunities within the Group.

NNK Group Limited
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Commitment to Quality

The Group has made relentless efforts in delivering premium customer experience
with superior mobile top-up services. The staff have an acute judgment on market and
customers' needs. Therefore, customer requests are promptly satisfied and steered
through establishing various channels to foster two-way communication. With a proactive
approach on continuous improvement in customer experience, the Board believes that

the Group can acquire competitive advantages in its business operation.

Management of Supply Chain

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria in selecting suppliers, and has
established a supplier evaluation system in terms of price, quality, cost, delivery and after-
sales service. The Group will carry out long-term quality monitoring and conduct regular
reviews on all suppliers as well as causal examination on different suppliers to ensure

quality supplies and services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Principal
corporate goverance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 27 to 46 contained in this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Articles provides that every director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
director of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which

judgment is given in his favor, or in which he or she is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs associated with

defending any proceeding which may be brought against the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the period commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's

listed securities.
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Report of the Directors
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

BANK LOANS
Al the bank loans of the Group are repayable on demand or within one year. Details
of the bank loans of the Group as at 3| December 2017 are set out in note 22 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

DONATION
RMB 10,000 was donated to the China Youth Development Foundation by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the Scheme of the Company as set out in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 3|

December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 31 December 2017.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company. If the Shareholders are unsure
about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the

exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult

an expert.
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REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matter,
including the review of the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended 3| December 2017 have been audited by the Company's external auditors,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the past five financial

years is set out on page |76 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events that may affect the business operation and/or the

financial position of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2017.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 7 January
2016 (the “Listing Date") and the Company raised net proceeds (after the exercise
of the over-allotment option and after deducting the underwriting fees, commissions
and other expenses payable by the Company in connection with the global offering) of
approximately HK$52.0 million. During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2017, approximately HK$5.2 million of the net proceeds from the listing were utilised
for general operation expense, approximately HK$2.2 million of the net proceeds
from the listing were utilised for software and research and development activities, and
approximately HK$10.4 million of the net proceeds from the listing were utilised for
enhancing the Group's brand's recognition by means of expanding its PRC bank coverage.
Such utilisation of the net proceeds was in accordance with the proposed allocations as
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The

unutilised portion of the net proceeds were deposited in reputable banks in Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDITOR
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2017 have
been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which will retire, and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Huang Junmou

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

To the Shareholders of NNK Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NNK Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 110 to |75, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 3|1 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
l. Existence of inventories

We identified the existence of inventories as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the virtual

nature of some inventories.

The carrying amount of inventories amounted to approximately RMBI [8 million is carried

in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures in relation to the existence of inventories included:

D) Involving our internal information technology specialists to evaluate the design and
effectiveness of general computer controls and application controls of the 007ka

Top-up Platform (the “System”);

) Involving our internal information technology specialists to check the stock
movement of virtual prepaid mobile top-ups cards recorded in the System to be in
line with the inventory balances recorded in ledger as at the end of the reporting

period; and

i) Involving our internal information technology specialists to verify the acquisition
record before year end and subsequent usage record after year end of same cards

in the System, on a sample basis, to ensure their existence as at year end.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
2. Revenue recognition on mobile top-up service

During the year, the majority of the Group's revenue was contributed from the top-up
service. We identified the revenue recognition on mobile top-up service as a key audit
matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial statements. The revenue was

approximately RMB83 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Once a top-up request from an individual mobile was placed, the request would be

automatically transferred from the channels of customer to the System.

All the top-up transactions were generated and recorded in the System automatically.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition included:

D) Evaluating the effectiveness of internal controls over the revenue recognition

process in respect of top-up service and the System;

i) Confirming with the major channels of customer of the Group for the transaction

amounts of top-up service;

i) Involving our internal information technology specialists in testing the validity and
accuracy of the sales orders received by the Group recognised in the System and

its authentication process on security validation check; and

V)  Involving our internal information technology specialists to perform various data

analysis on the transaction pattem.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEERE

OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alterative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEERE

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

1 08 NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

REMHET REMBRRARNEL

(&)

HEERAREGETERNRER
fEdi&mR - REBEFAENETRE  RTE
REREEEHRBENAHENEATHE
EME - EMAEERY SEEREL
EMEENBRERRE - MRATRR
REERTHEEN BB BEREE
REPRFEAEIEHELHBRRT
MAERE BREBBROKRETR - A
FIREBRRFEREER - KITNE
wRARZHMRS B LGNS
BE- AWM ARREHXBERTES

B ERETRRERE -

FEGAMBRRNERIERIA &
BNAR  BREE AREAMER
REBDFRBIBBLZMER -

3 BEREFEEAXRBEDOM B
BERRL - BENERE  NHE
AMBHRRERER - ATRE B
BEOR - BEMAT - ATAE
AERAREZNAE -

pafll3

w2



Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is

Wong Shun Yu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SRRk AMEEHRER

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—¥-tF “TAF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

P&t ARBTFRT ARETE

Revenue HA 6 83,321 162,564
Less: Tax surcharge BN (1,437) 2,571
Cost of revenue W AR A (38,520) (77,850)
Gross profit EH 43,364 82,143
Other income and expenses H WA R 2 7 (713) 11,167
Distribution and selling expenses DIERHERX (15,775) (10,095)
Administrative expenses THRX (27,195) (26,239)
Research and development expenses e (13,017) (14,567)
Finance costs R 8 (6,393) (7.759)
(Loss) profit before tax BREL AT (1R )& T 9 (19,729) 34,650
Income tax credit (expense) gt e (Fx) 10 691 (1,105)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FN(HR)ENR2E

(expense) income for the year (Fx ) s es (19,038) 33,545
Total comprehensive (expense) income ARAERAEERE

attributable to owners of the Company (FAx)hmmsE (19,038) 33,545
(Loss) earnings per share Bik(EE) B 13
~ Basic (RMB) - EX(ARET) (0.05) 0.08
~ Diluted (RMB) o S UN ) (0.05) 008
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 3/ December 2017

REF—F+=A=+-H

2017 2016
—2-tF T RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARMTRE AREBTL
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 14 4,876 7,309
Rental deposits HERe ,188 498
Deferred tax assets BERIBAE 24 6,168 5568
12,232 13,375

Current assets RBEE
Inventories =& 15 117,992 157,172
Trade receivables B HRENE 16 58,312 69,875
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNRE - BE KEMEKE 17 85,436 47,498
Tax recoverable Al Bl E 939 819
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 19 144,821 124,719
407,500 400,083

Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables BHRNTE 20 39,626 36911
Other payables H ot JERTFROR 21 42,348 53,123
Bank borrowings RITIEK 2 124,000 80,000
205,974 170,034
Net current assets REBEEFE 201,526 230049
Total assets less current liabilities BEERATRBDAR 213,758 243424
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEBMBRRR

At 3] December 2017
REF—t#F+=A=1—H

2017 2016
—g-tF —TAF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P&t ARBTFRT ARETE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Government grants BB 23 227 895
Deferred tax liabilties ELHBRE 24 9,280 9,280
9,507 10,175
Net assets BEFAE 204,251 233249
Capital and reserves EXR %
Share capital & 25 27,221 27,221
Reserves G 177,030 206,028
Total equity BiEm 204,251 233249
The consolidated financial statements on 10 to 175 were approved and authorised for FI0EITSENEAMBEECHESe RN

issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Huang Junmou, Yang Hua,
BERE BE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 EF

1 *l 2 NNK Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERRER

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYNGIE 2PN
Share Share Capital  Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total

k& KRoEE EARE ZERE REERA @t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
(Note i)  (Note ii)

At | January 2016

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Issue of new shares by the Company
upon Capitalisation Issue (note 25)

Issue of new shares by the Company
upon global offering

Issue of new shares by the Company

upon exercise of

RZE-—RE-A—-H 308 — 46,510 10340 67636 124,794
FREFR

2EKREE — — — — 33,545 33,545
RARRERMEEST

AT (B EE25) 19,365 (19,365) — — — —
ARAIREREE

BITHRR 6,565 77462 — — — 84,027
PNk g

BORBITHRR

over-allotment option 983 12451 — — — 13434
Share issue expenses RIVETRZ — (22551) — — — (22551)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—AF

+=ZA=t+—-H 27221 47997 46510 10,340 01,181 233249

Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year

FABERZERY AR
— — — (19038)  (19039)

Dividend paid (note 12) ERRE (I 12) — (9.960) — — — (9.960)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F
+-A=+—-H 27,221 38,037 46510 10,340 82,143 204251
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERBREHR

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

Notes: BifzE
0) The amounts of capital reserve mainly include: (i) EXFEBSEIENSE
(@  anamount of RMB25,510,000 representing the differences between the consideration @ SEARE5100007T BRI —FK
received on disposal of the entire equity interests in Shenzhen Shenzhou Tongfu BB AR KRR (EERMT HE
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Tongfu") and Chengdu Shenzhou Tongfu KRR RN B R RIRYIT M@ RHL
Technology Co, Ltd. (“Chengdu Tongfu"), subsidiaries of the Company, to a related BROB ([ MNBA ) RBCE T M
company and the Shareholders (as defined in note ), and the carrying amounts of BAREERAR(TREBBEMS]EZ
the net assets of Shenzhou Tongfu and Chengdu Tongfu; and R AR AT UCER By B B A A5 J X
MEAMZEERMEANER:
K
(b)  anamount of RMB20,680,000 representing the difference between the nominal value b) SFARE206800007T  FERAFE
of the share capital issued by the Company and the registered capital of a subsidiary SRBADAREBITRAEEERR
acquired by the Company upon a corporate reorganisation. FIFTEE A — P B A RIA & AR
2 RS o
(i) As stipulated by the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC (iy PEARANMB(HEDIEREETH $
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory reserve fund. The minimum transfer to BB ARRRRF—EEERHES - BBE
statutory reserves is 10% of profit after tax of the PRC subsidiaries according to the PRC EERENRESEARETENMBERTN
subsidiaries’ statutory financial statements. No appropriation is required if the balance of the EEMBS AT E R BB R RS T
statutory reserves has reached 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The S Y 10% o fif A TE R R A R P B PR B 2
statutory reserves can be used to make up losses or for conversion into capital. Bl MEARR 0% - RIBAEELEE < EF

FETRANARBRLABRAER -

1 14 NNK Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GREREREBR

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

2017 2016

S i
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEy
(Loss) profit before tax BBt AT (&8 )& (19,729) 34,650
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BELRETE 4,060 6,508
Finance costs BB 6,393 7,759
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables B S RN FIRRRNRERE 4,000 —
Government grants related to assets (note 23) BEMRBBRAE(FFFE23) (668) (1,524)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERRENER 646 24
Interest income FEUA (5,675) (2,110)
Unrealised net exchange losses (gains) RERINERE (Yas) FH 2,618 (2,833)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital LEEREPNKERERE (8,355) 4,474
Increase in rental deposits HERSEM (690) (161)
Decrease in inventories FERD 39,180 108,453
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables B S RNIER S (Em) 7,563 (31,737
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits FERNTIE - Be REMEK
and other receivables FIECEM) RS (37,938) 70,140
Increase (decrease) in trade payables B HEMNFTIEEMORD) 2,715 (18,144)
Decrease in other payables H e 5Rmm A (10,775) (11,795)
Cash (used in) generated from operations rEEB(MAMERS (8,300) 159,230
Income tax paid BTSN (29) (3,442)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFH(FTRA)ERLFE (8,329) 155,788
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv_\ é IE, ﬁ )‘ﬁ i %

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

2017 2016
Bt XK
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Withdrawal of structured products HsEBtEED 4,960,540 2,707,500
Interest received FITUCN & 5,675 2,110
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE LRERERIE 93 306
Placement of structured products FEEBIEED (4,960,540)  (2,707,500)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELREE (2,366) (2415)
Repayments from related companies MR RIER — 86,793
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits X R EIRITER = 27,000
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHFRBALFE 3,402 113,794
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEREE 429,482 816,646
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (385,482)  (1,081461)
Dividend paid BERRE (9,960) —
Interest paid REBEURSS (6,393) (7,759)
Issue of shares BT — 97,46
Share issue expenses RN BT = (22,551)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBHHRE (A REER 27,647 (197,664)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekBReZEMEMEE 22,720 71918
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R—A—BNRELREEEY 124,719 49,968
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INERE RSB E (2,618) 2,833
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December, R+ZRA=+—HNRekREE
represented by bank balances and cash B - BRTERERE 144,821 124,719
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands on 18 June 2014 and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
ultimate controlling shareholders are Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Li
Xiangcheng, Mr. Xu Xinhua and Mr. Huang Shaowu (collectively referred to as
the “Shareholders”). The Company's registered office is located at PO Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY|-1104, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is 5/F., Building F5, TCL Interational E City, No. 1001
Zhongshan Yuan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of the
Group is engaged in providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the
PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—+F+A=1—HIFE

—REH
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BEEIMALREHRRERAR AR
DERBEMAXIMBRAA([BR
FDERET - ERABRAFERRL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

118

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The mobile top-up service provided by the Group is prohibited and restricted to
foreign investment in the PRC pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations.
The Group has adopted a series of contracts with the Shareholders (the “Structured
Contracts) and Shenzhen Niannianka Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
NNK") to maintain and exercise the control over the operation of Shenzhen NNK,
and to obtain all of its entire economic benefits (the “VIE Arrangement”). The

Structured Contracts are irrevocable and enable the Group to:

*  exercise effective financial and operational control over Shenzhen NNK;

*  exerdse equity holders’ voting rights of Shenzhen NNK;

®  receive substantially all economic returmns generated by Shenzhen NNK in
consideration for the business support, technical and consulting services

provided by the Group;

®  obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase the entire equity

interest in Shenzhen NNK from the Shareholders; and

®  obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Shenzhen NNK from
the Shareholders as collateral security for all of Shenzhen NNK due to the
Group and to secure performance of Shareholders’ obligations under the

Structured Contracts.

The Company does not have any equity interest in Shenzhen NNK. However,
as a result of the Structured Contracts, the Company has power over Shenzhen
NNK which has rights to variable retumns from its involvement with Shenzhen NNK
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over Shenzhen NNK
and therefore is considered to have control over Shenzhen NNK. Consequently,
the Company regards Shenzhen NNK as an indirect subsidiary and consolidated
the financial position and results of Shenzhen NNK in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group during both years.

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
ERGRIERETRMER A BEH~
Amendments to HKAS 12

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FAFT-A=1—HIFE

A REET B RUBREER
([ERMBREER] ) NER
AEERAERNERMBREEAN
LHES
AEERAFEERERERGHIA
S((EAREMAE ) BRHNEENHK
HERAZEFT :

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

BRGIIERE RMNBITA
Amendments to HKFRS 12

RAERERRAETCHAEE
As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

BBMEREER BEVBREEN _T-NFE
F I2RERTA “E-RFBHNFEICEN ()

Except as described below, the application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior vears and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year.
The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial assets

were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i) changes
from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is
provided in note 33. Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments,
the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 33, the application of these amendments has

had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

3.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised to HKFRSs that

AT REBT BBV BREER
(%)
BRMENRERNHTREBITER
MBREEL
AEBTERESERTIERHERRK
EREFE RSB BB RS EA

have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
BANBREERE IR
HKFRS 15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment

requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

®  all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other financial assets are measured at
their fair value at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held-for-trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in

profit or loss.

® in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies as at 31
December 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the following potential
impact on initial application of HKFRS9:

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment

provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount of
impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at | January 2018 would be slightly
increased as compared to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39
mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on trade receivables. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit loss model would reduce the

opening retained earnings at | January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
IS5 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS || Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it

becomes effective.

1 22 NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS |5 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:

®  Step I:Identify the contract(s) with a customer

®  Step 2 Identify the performance obligations in the contract
®  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

®  Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the

contract

®  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance

obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 5.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as

well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the

timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases

by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents other operating lease payments as
operating cash flows. Upon application of the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will

be presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

1 24 NNK Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a

lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB 10,930,000 as disclosed in note 28. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value

or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
RMBI, 118,000 as rights under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS |6, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are
considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits

paid would be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in changes in

measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations mentioned
above, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material impact

on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value

in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

‘l 26 NNK Group Limited

Annual Report 2017

4.

ERER IR
BRMBRRCRBEBSAMOEREM
MEBHBRERAGER - 1o A
PHBRBEEBIAES LHAA(E
MR ) REE R REI(T2EHER )
RENBEREE -

MTXFEEBEML 58 HR
RN RERRRE LA ERHH -

BELRA—RERBBREY KRB
IRREHLTE -

AFEDARGERENEFRSP -
mESEENE-REEMPRIER
—HAEMXHNER T wAAE
REMEEDAERABERN A %E
B NEFEEXRBENAFER K
SEEZREEXRENEAHNE
B GARBRRPIETER/RRE
RENATEDREERETE  EEE
EHENFEI7TREEREANEER
5 ARERVEFES TRUMEL
FRFENFEMBEESHERE LR
BETNAZRFEXETESHENE
36SREERETOEAREE)RI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level I, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level |,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

| has power over the investee;

® s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
d has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-F—+F+ZA=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests has a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Mobile top-up service income is received from the mobile subscribers, net of cost
of mobile top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication companies or
vendors. Mobile top-up service income is recognised when the telecommunication

companies completed the mobile top-up service for the mobile subscribers.

Service income is recognised when the service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities which is not eligible for

capitalisation is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes which are classified
as defined contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to

the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘(loss) profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted

for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment

loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial

assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the

time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of

the loans and receivables have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

®  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

®  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

| it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to 60 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified either as
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by

the group entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and bank borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

1 36 NNK Group Limited

Annual Report 2017

BEEHBRE)

¢WMIAE)
BRRENZEREE)

R EBRBEREESEEMRD -
ﬁ%ﬁﬁwﬁﬂgﬁtéﬂﬁﬁmﬁkﬁfﬁéﬁm
EHEH AL RANREBRES
BREETUER - EZRERRER
BEEANEAETEBARERRE
B A B SR o

THRERKLAIAR
SEEBRTNEBERRATATIRE
ARZHENABRAREBEBEREAT
ENEEDBRERAERBRA -

KRATR
BRATAREMEREEEBMRNERN
BRERNEENSBEDZNAH - £HE
ERETHRATARCKAEFRM
FREEBITROR ) HER -

(P

ERANE LR EERABRA BN
BEERAURDENEFHITE
ERMRERERARNER FHI(
BR)BREHEANGIRIR SR
(BREERERNEZ—BINMEE MK
BEREREED  XHRARE MR E
IR ) ERAER EN S RRBOREF
{EHRE

MEFIEER MR ARER

REBHRLT BN EHRE
cRAEBRESENFEA  HEEN

FARBITER  HRZBEXANE
BRAIREGE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

4.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the mobile top-up
service and suppliers of mobile top-up credits and determines that the Group is
providing the mobile top-up service by facilitating transactions between the PRC
telecommunication companies and mobile subscribers, and accordingly reports

revenue derived from such services on net basis.

In determining whether the revenue from mobile top-up service shall be recorded
on net basis or gross basis, the Group has made reference to indicators and
requirements stated in HKAS 8. Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or an agent requires judgment and consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances, and the Group considers itself has an agency relationship with the
PRC telecommunication companies under HKAS 18 by assessing the following

features that are arising from its operations:

® [|tis the primary responsibility of the PRC telecommunication companies,
instead of the Group, for processing the mobile top-up service associated

with the mobile top-up credits provided to the mobile subscribers.

®  The Group has minimal valuation risk on the inventory for the transactions
with mobile top-up credits sourced from the PRC telecommunication
companies and their distributors as those mobile top-up credits were used
to top-up the mobile subscriber's requests instantaneously. Although the
Group maintains a minimal level of mobile top-up credits as buffer stocks,

these stocks are used solely to facilitate the transactions.

®  The nominal value of the mobile top-up credits are usually predetermined

by the PRC telecommunication companies.

®  The credit risk of the Group is minimal as majority of the mobile subscribers
either pay in advance or at time of requesting mobile top-up service via

banks or other payment platform.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors, the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM"), in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their

performance.

The CODMs review the Group's financial performance as a whole, which
is generated from the provision of mobile top-up service by the Group to
customers and determined in accordance with the Group's accounting policies, for
performance assessment. Therefore, no separate segment information is prepared

by the Group.

Geographical information
All of the Group's revenue and assets are principally derived from customers in the

PRC and located in the PRC, no geographical segment information is presented.

Information about major customers
There was no revenue from individual customers of the Group contributing over

10% of the total revenue of the Group during both vears.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES Hit WA RBIX
2017 2016
“E-tF —TRF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pl &t ARBTFR ARETT

Interest income JSCON

— from structured products (Note a) - REHEBUER(MTa) 5,122 1412

— from bank deposits —REHRITER 553 698

Government grants TR B 23 668 1524

Government subsidy (Note b) R REAL (Pt D) — 4,658

Impairment loss recognised in respect of B E S EWFIEE R A ERE

trade receivables 16 (4,000) —

Net foreign exchange (losses) gains NEE (B518 ) e F 58 (2618) 2,833

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% « BiE RSB EE (646) (24)

Others Hfth 208 66

(713) 1,167

Notes: izt -

(@) During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group entered into @ HEZ—+HER-_ZT—X Ft+-A
principal and return unprotected-structured products with banks in the PRC that were “+—HIEE KEERTES
denominated in RMB and without fixed maturity period. Interest of the structured RIBTHEB AL QI MIHRER EE M
products varied depending on the performance and return of underlying investments EREARENE  ®mET N
managed by the banks. The structured products were designated as financial assets at B o EHEME RO BB THRITE
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. All the structured products were EREERENRERBRMTE o &
purchased and redeemed during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. BUEDRSEARIETAIEAT

Bt \BENEREE - EHBIL
ERPIRBE_T—tFR_F—R
FTZA=t-HUISEBERE
=

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, the relevant government authority b)) HEZ-—XRE+-_A=+—-HItF

140

granted one-off subsidy to the group amounting to RMB2,080,000 and RMB2,578,000,
in relation to certain finance costs paid to the banks and research and development
expenses incurred in prior years, respectively, which were recognised in the profit
or loss in the year in which they became receivable. No such one-off subsidy was
granted to the Group by the relevant government authority for the year ended 3|
December 2017.

NNK Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

B BHBRAERASKERNBE
FEARITMNOETHBELARB
FEEEENRERAELDRIBA
FR 2,080,000 7T & A R # 2,578,000 7T
B — IR IEFRRE - 0754 B AT IR B
EARNERER - R _F—tF+=
A=1+—RBLEFE  HEBRFRPL
EMAKERHZ R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
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FINANCE COSTS 8. BB
2017 2016
Bt T RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TRL
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 6,393 7,759
(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRBiAI(EE)ER
(Loss) profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: BRECAT (B )& A DA HURUA T 518 1R
=

2017 2016
—E—tF ZIZT—XF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETR

Staff costs (including directors” emoluments (note | 1)) BIRA(BREEREME) (M)

Salaries and other benefits TEREAER 22,952 21576
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFIEME R 2,892 2718
Total staff costs BIMAREE 25,844 24,294
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Wm¥E - BERREBRE 4,060 6,508
Auditor’s remuneration %SRS

— Audit services —FiT IR 1,556 1572
— Non-audit services — kAR 615 636
Operating lease rentals mERENS 2,062 1,731
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 10. FiEH(ER)BEX
2017 2016
2t ZT—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") REIREAET ([ EEMEHR])
Current B — 1,044
(Over) under provision in prior years BREFE(BRRB) BETR Cl)) 6l
o) [,105
Deferred tax (note 24) EFERL A (M 5E 24) (600) —
(691) [,105
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from ARG IRFEREIME Y MER®
income tax. HMPTISH -
Hong Kong &g
The applicable tax rate of the subsidiary in Hong Kong is 16.5%. No provision for EENBARRBEEME A 165% - AR
Hong Kong Profits Tax was made in the consolidated financial statements, as no WEREBELERREN  WEEH
assessable profit was generated in Hong Kong. BB RPWERESF ST TR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

The PRC

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and Implementation Regulations of the
Law of the PRC (the “PRC EIT Law’") which became effective on | January 2008,
the applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% during the two years.

In September 2014, Shenzhen NNK a PRC subsidiary, was qualified as a High and
New Technology Enterprise by Shenzhen Technological Innovation Committee,
Shenzhen Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen Municipality
and Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation, and
therefore was entitled to 15% preferential tax rate for three years starting from the
year ended 31 December 2015, in accordance with the PRC EIT Law. Accordingly,
the tax rate of Shenzhen NNK'is 15% for both years.

In January 2016, Daily Charge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Daily Charge SZ"),
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise of the Company, was accredited as a software
enterprise by the Shenzhen Software Industry Association, and therefore could
enjoy an income tax exemption for two years starting from its first profit-making
year and a 50% tax reduction to an income tax rate of 12.5% for the subsequent

three years.

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

10. FRE®(ER)FAX @)

hE
RER-FTNF—A—BRERNS
BeERMERA(HBERERERE])
REBEE  FEHNBRRNMES
EHETE MR A5 25% °

RZZE-MFEAA - REMNELD BRI
FERERYTRRAHZES R

MR« RYImie A HERRFRI T
EZRGEREESHIRMEEER B
WRETRCEMEHE BRHE-T
—hE+ZA=T—HBLEER=FAF
BEER IS%HBERE - Bt NMfE
FE - RNEERNTER 15%

RZE—RF—A  XRRAERKCRI)
BRAB(TXRXRZRI] - KRR
BEGER)ERNYTEHTERERA R
[ E] R EEERNFELER
FEEMERBRRNER =ZFRAF
HIETS BB 12.5% M F o
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A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued) 0. FIBR (KRB &)
The PRC (continued) g (E)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax per FERMEHREY A EEERIERE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as Hh2EaXRPHBREA(EE)EFR
follows: m
2017 2016

—E—tF ZZT—XF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETRE ARETRL

(Loss) profit before tax R AT (1R )R (19,729) 34,650
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% BRERME 5% ENHIE (4,932) 8,663
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose PAMBEXNR BT E 2,989 933
Additional tax benefit on research and e R BB B ()

development expenses (Note) (1,000) (3,465)
Effect of tax exemption and relief granted to AN FERERTEARRNTE

Shenzhen NNK = (405)
Effect of tax exemption and relief granted to ARFARYERRIBRENTE

Daily Charge SZ = (4,682)
(Over) under provision of EIT in prior years F—FEREMGHA(BERE)

BEIRE ©@n 6l

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREBBON BT E 2,343 —
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FRMEHRER)FX (691) [,105
Note: BiEE
Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme that, in addition to the research and development HMBEEE-RYBSE - BRFEEAAR
cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further 50% of the research and MRS - P 4 ) 590 50% it 2
development cost incurred is deductible. B TR AT R HIRL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E=up S

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

the applicable Listing Rules and the CO, is as follows:

for the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-_T—+4+-A=1+—HIFFE

EE IETHAEREENHE

RBER DR A A GO RREDN
FREERIBTRAENFEMT :

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
I&R RIKEF
e HitrR TR CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR AR%T:R
For the year ended 3| December 2017 HE-Z—+4F
TZA=t—RIFE
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Huang Junmou BRREEE 130 1,010 72 1,212
Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer) LA (BREHITE) 130 1,000 72 1,202
Non-executive directors: FRPTES -
Mr. Yu Zida BT ERE 130 — — 130
Mr. Li Xiangcheng FEWEE 130 = = 130
Mr. Xu Xinhua REER L 130 — — 130
Independent non-executive directors: BIUFHTES:
Mr. Lin Zhangxi WEHFE 130 = = 130
Mr. Qian Haomin BRREE 130 — — 130
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HEMZ LT 130 — — 130
1,040 2,010 144 3,194

FEREEFRAR 145

2017 R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

II. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Ex IETHABRESNHMES

(continued) (%)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
allowances  contributions
Fees I% R Total
we  REMRE ATEIHAR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR%TR
For the year ended 3| December 2016 B E =T —RF
+ZRA=+—RI5E
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Huang Junmou BERELE 129 1,010 62 1,201
Mr. Yang Hua (Chief Executive Officer) LA (BERFHITE) 129 1,000 62 1191
Mr. Luo Mingxing (Note a) BPE K& (M) I 40 5 56
Non-executive directors: FHITES
Mr. Yu Zida B ESRE 129 — — 129
Mr. Li Xiangcheng FEREE 129 — — 129
Mr. Xu Xinhua RETEESLA 129 — — 129
Independent non-executive directors:  BIUIFHITES :
Mr. Lin Zhangxi WERLE 129 — — 129
Mr. Qian Haomin BRERLE 129 — — 129
Ms. Zhao Jinlin HEMLT 129 — — 129
1,043 2,050 129 3222
Note: FfsE -
(@) On 8 February 2016, Mr. Luo Mingxing ceased to be the executive director of the @ RKRIZ—R"EZANA - BZHEXHE

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

Employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included 2 directors
(2016: 2 directors), details of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining 3 (2016: 3) highest paid employees

who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

EE - FETHRAEBREENHS
(&)

&
AEERFANRESESTMES RE 24
ES(ZT—AF28EF) HEMF
BEREX - WHARLRAEERTE
THRABRBRTIA(ZE—RF :348)
BeFHEERFANFMFENT

2017 2016
“E-tE T RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR®ETR

Employees E&
— salaries and allowances —T& & 2Eh 1,264 1322
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RKEFIFTEIE T 137 154
1,401 |,476

During both years, the emoluments of remaining employees were within
HK$ 1,000,000 band.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors, chief executive of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors and the chief executive of the Company has waived any

emoluments during both years.

RREEE #TEENME&HE
1,000,000 & TTIARA ©

RREFE  AREYERARADEER
B BRUTEIREEAFMAL
IAEMMEERRELMAIRMA
REBROHMAELBRBHE - HE
ARAEZRERITBRABRMEFE
HMEEAME -
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

12. DIVIDENDS 2. RE
2017 2016
“E-t§ —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the FRAERR/D K ARAF
Company recognised as distribution during the year: ERRRERE
2016 Final - RMB0.024 (2016: Nil) per share —E-RERORE -8R
ARE00UAT(ZF—RF: F) 9,960 —
The directors of the Company did not recommend the declaration of final dividend AAFEETREEREEZE 22—+ 5
for the year ended 31 December 2017. TZA=T—HILFERBRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BR(EEB)EF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share attributable to the ARABEAREGREAREE(E
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BIBFMDERUATEHETE
2017 2016
“E-t§ —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted s REAR R E (518) &7
(loss) earnings per share: = & (B18) BH -
— (loss) profit for the year attributable to the owners —RREERABGEFN(EE)EN
of the Company (19,038) 33,545
Number of shares
BRMOBE
2017 2016
“E-tF T RF
’000 ‘000
H i
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HERER(ER)BAME
for the purpose of basic (loss) eamings per share VE BRI T 415,000 412,329
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BERELRRNTERIREET
over-allotment option from global offering M B R T AR — 259
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the sEREE(BR) AN =
purpose of diluted (loss) eamings per share LB T2 415,000 412,588

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the basic earnings per share is assumed
that the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in note 25) had been completed on |

January 2016.

No dilutive eamings per share is presented for the year ended 31 December 2017

as there was no potential ordinary share in issue during this year.

B2 t+-A=+—-HLEFE"
BREABFDERBREERNMEBET(E
BRMNE2B)ER-_Z—RF-A—H%
ﬁjzo
ARBZE-T—tF+-_A=+—HLt
FEVEBECETERR  SRLF
B E25GREERN -
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A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. Y% BERRE
Computer
Leasehold and office
improvement Motor equipment
HEYW=E vehicles TEHRR Total
xIE AE MORE A&t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARBTR ARETR

COST DR
At | January 2016 RZT—A~F—A—H — 876 25,793 26,669
Additions RE — 2,065 350 2415
Disposals HE — — (1,124) (1,124)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H — 2,941 25019 27,960
Additions RE 1110 — 1,256 2366
Disposals & — (78) (14221) (14,299)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+-A=1+—H 1110 2,863 12,054 16,027
DEPRECIATION nE
At | January 2016 RZT—AF—A—H — 592 14,345 14,937
Provided for the year FREE — 236 6272 6,508
Eliminated on disposals i ak=t:a i i — — (794) (794)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H — 828 19,823 20,651
Provided for the year FREE 9 446 3,605 4060
Fliminated on disposals R — 61 (13499) (13,560)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+=-A=+—H 9 1213 9,929 11,151
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-A=1+—H 1,101 650 2,125 4876
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+-A=1+—H — 2113 5,196 7,309
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- FaE BENREEE IRAFER
line basis over the useful lives as follows: FHNLEGEEETINE ¢
Leasehold improvement Shorter of respective lease or 5 years THEMELE BEMAESSTF

(B EA%E)
Motor vehicles 5 years HE =
Computer and office equipment 3to 5 years HEMN 3ESE

WK
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

INVENTORIES rE
2017 2016
2t ZTF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR®TR ARETI
Pre-paid mobile top-up credits BNFRFERERS 117,992 157,172
TRADE RECEIVABLES B S EWE
2017 2016
—E—tF CZTRF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRE AREBTL

Trade receivables B HRWIE 62,312 69,875
Less: allowance of doubtful debts B RERBHE (4,000) —
Total trade receivables B I FIBA%E 58,312 69875

Trade receivables mainly represent receivable from financial institution in relation
to the mobile top-up service which the settlement period is normally within | day
from transaction date. For the corporate customers, the credit period was about 30
to 60 days granted by the Group. The Group did not hold any collateral over these

balances.

Before accepting any new corporate customers, the management of the Group will
base on the credit quality of the potential customers to define credit limits. Credit
limits to customers are reviewed annually over these balances. Trade receivables
of RMB58,216,000 (2016: RMB69,643,000) that are neither past due nor impaired
have good credit quality with reference to the track record of these customers

under internal assessment by the Group.

BORNREBELTERERFHREERE
RS RemEEKRMZTIE  SEHB
FARHBEIRA - HRPERPF « K
EERTHIEOANEASE - £5E
WM Z S E A B EAERY -

BEWERARCERRPA  AREERE
ERBEBECEEPNEARABEREAE
B AREEFHSEZSERNER
ERABTEFPNEREE - RELE
BAST% K2RZEEPMAER
8 AT EAENE S ERZE
AR#58216000T(ZF—~F: AR
#69,6430007T) EERIFEEEER -
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful

debts, presented based on the date of service provided and revenue recognised, at

the end of each reporting period:

le. BHEEKHKE#)
TIARERERRREMRERE B
B % R rE iR Mt 2 51 0 E 5 R MR (41
RRERE) OERRDT

2017 2016
-t —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

0to 30 days 0E30K 58,216 69,213
31 to 60 days 31 E60K = 430
Over 60 days 60 RBA L 96 232

58,312 69,875

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate

carrying amount of RMB96,000 (31 December 2016: RMB232,000) which are past

due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment

loss. The directors consider all trade receivables at the end of the reporting date

are likely to be collectable under internal assessment by the Group.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debt

AEENEFRWFBLERT  BER
BREAHCRBmASEYEELRE
RENEKES BELAEAARE
96000TL(ZE—RF+_A=+—8:
232000) - EERA - REAEERH
T RBRERHATERNMAEE SR
WORIB R AT BE Al T 4R o

REREEY
2017 2016
Bt T K
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

| January —HA—A = —
Impairment losses recognised on receivables oM FORRER )R E 1R 4,000 —
31 December +ZHA=+—H 4,000 —
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 7. FENFIE - BEeREMEWRTE
2017 2016
“E-tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTZT
Prepayments for mobile top-up credit FREERELBERMNTE 81,875 45614
Other prepayments and deposits Hip BRI RERE S 2,746 1,478
Temporary advances to staff e B BRI 2K 312 156
Others At 503 250
85,436 47,498

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 18. FEUNEE: A TIFUIE

The related companies were under the common control of the directors of the

Company.

For amounts due from related companies, the amounts were non-trade in nature.
The amounts due from related companies were subsequently settled in January
2016. The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of the amounts due from related companies were shown below.

Amounts due from related companies

BB AR X AR A EE RS -

RERERARKENS  FARER
BFEHINE - BRBB ARFUARER
RIB—A"F- AN - BRTEARE
HH 2ERARBEREE - BREY
REFANFFHRTX

FEUBERE 2RI TIR

2017 2016
Bt T K
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Shenzhou Tongfu EIFEIR)
Shenzhen Shenzhou Tongxing Technology AT M BT AR AR
Company Limited (“Shenzhou Tongxing”) (MBI

FEREEFRAR
2017 R 153




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

18.

194

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES (continued) 8. FEUWEAEEA N TRIFIE(Z)
Maximum amount outstanding during the years of amounts due from related BEEBANBIED(F 602GE ) iEERE
companies disclosed pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. WHEBAREAAGEEN RS NEERT
622G) are as follows: N
2017 2016
—E-t& T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTZT
Shenzhou Tongfu EDIE L] — 66,793
Shenzhou Tongxing BT — 20,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERREEEY

The Group's cash and cash equivalents carry interests at prevailing market rates
which range from 0.01% to 0.83% per annum as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
0.01% to 0.30%).

Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than the functional

currency of the relevant group entity are set out below:

R-Z—+F+-F=+—H ~x£&H
MRERREZBWENREF00I%E
083%(ZF—/"F : 001%Z030%) KR
TSR B -

MEMEEERY EEN I E N
EHBFEBBIINT -

2017 2016

—E2—tf ZZF

RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTRT ARETR

HK$ BT 28,717 47,866
Uss$ ETT 5 1,662
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—+F+A=1—HIFE

TRADE PAYABLES 20. BEZEMFE
2017 2016
Bt —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Amounts due to third parties R E=7E 39,626 36911

The Group is normally granted credit terms about 90 days. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit

timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

date at the end of respective reporting periods:

AEEBBERRNIORNERY - 1%
BT BRREERER - AERAE
ENFRETSBHERSER -

ATAREREARRELZAHZI
M8 5 AR Rl 21T -
2017 2016
—2-tf ZTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTE

0 to 90 days 0E90K 5,790 10513
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 2,960 3,748
181 to 360 days 181 £360K 30,876 22,650

39,626 36911
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

21. OTHER PAYABLES 21, HtEMAFROE
2017 2016
—E—+f —Z—RF
RMB'000 RMB000

ARBTR ARETT

Receipts in advance TR 35,035 43,797
Accrued salaries & 3,456 2,396
Other taxes payables Hit A HIE 2,344 5404
Payable for audit fee ERNEER 772 90l
Others it 741 625
42,348 53,123

22.  BANK BORROWINGS 22. RITER
2017 2016
Bt T RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Unsecured, repayable within one year and BEA R—FREER
shown under current liabilities KRB B EATIR 124,000 80,000
The Group's unsecured bank borrowings were denominated in RMB. All the NREFNEEARITETIUAREE
Group's bank borrowings carried interest rates ranging as below: B AEENFMAERTERNXREED
N
2017 2016
=5
Floating rate bank borrowings FEHRRITIER 5.00% to 5.44% 4.35% to 4.79%
5.00%%544%  435%%4.79%
The interest rates of the Group's bank borrowings in the PRC are based on AEERAHEERITERONEEF
benchmark interest rate of the People’s Bank of China. ARRITEENEET -
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—+F+A=1—HIFE

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 23. BB
2017 2016
Bt —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTR

Government grants related to assets EREEEMNKNHHE 227 895
RMB'000
ARETT

At | January 2016 RZZE—R"F—-H—H 2419
Credit to profit or loss AR (1,524)
At 31 December 2016 R-F-R"F+-A=t—H 895
Credit to profit or loss FABH (668)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZRA=+—H 227

In 2012, the Group received government subsidies of RMB3,000,000 in relation

to technology development project. The amount was recognised in profit or loss

in the year when the expenses incurred for the project. The amount was full

recognised in profit or loss in 2016.

In 2013, the Group received government subsidies of RMB5,000,000 in relation to

investment in operation equipment. The amount was recognised in profit or loss

over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

T AEERBMAEEEK
ER IR AT 48 B A R #3,000,0007C © % K
BRZEEEERIMFERNBRENE
R RHBR2I6FHBRANEZERE

27
e

“E-ZF AEERRELERBKR
BRI AT 4 Bh A R 5 5,000,000 7T © % FUE
RIEEEER R FRFHNEZAER -

FEREEFRAR 157

2017 R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A P AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EEHRE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting LT ABREVEREBENZEERBR
pUrposes: BRI -
2017 2016
—e-t§ —TAE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBTZR
Deferred tax assets BEVIREEE (6,168) (5,568)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIARE 9,280 9,280
3,112 3,712
The following are the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements ATRRENRBEFEMERNELT
thereon during the current and prior years: HEEEBE) REE
Allowance Deductible Taxable

of doubtful  management  management

debts of  fee expenses fee income of

Shenzhen  of Shenzhen  Daily Charge
NNK NNK YA Total

FINE  RREBR

FINFEF FFOTHRE  FIBER
AEEE ERERX HEZBERA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFR AR®TR AR®TR AR%TR

As | January 2016 and RZE-—RE-A—HK
31 December 2016 —E-R"FTZA=1+—H — (5,568) 9280 3712
Credit to profit or loss FFAER (600) — — (600)
As 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
+=—A=+—H~H (600) (5,568) 9,280 3112
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.
As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of taxable temporary differences
associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised amounted to RMB147,227,000 (31 December
2016: RMB166,315,000). No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect
of these differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that such differences will not

be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the VIE Arrangement, Shenzhen NINK would pay the management fee
to Daily Charge SZ. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the tax rate of Daily
Charge SZ was 25% while the tax rate of Shenzhen NNK was 5%. The payment
of management fee would raise the additional tax burden to the Group as a whole.
In this regard, the Group had recognised the related tax impact in deferred tax

assets and liabilities.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect of tax losses of
RMB9,372,000 (2016: Nil) due to unpredictability of future profit steams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB9,372,000 (2016: Nil) that will expire

within 5 years.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Company Law of the Cayman Islands on 18 June

2014 with 50,000 authorised shares of US$ | each.

On 17 April 2015, the authorised and issued share capital of the Company was
divided from 50,000 shares at par value of US$1.00 each to 5,000,000 shares at par
value of US$0.01 each (“'Sub-division”).

24.

25.

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

EEHIE(E)
RETFECEMEHE BZTTN\F
—A—BiE BB ARMRIG
FIERMBREHEARENT - R=F
—+tF+ZRA=+—H BNBELA
AORBMEENERAREREZELTE
(TEFERRECHBEAE) RARE
147,227,000 L (ZE—~F+ZA=+—
B AR 1663150007T) ° HRAAEE
EEHIRE TR EENNE BZE
EBAURETERABRRRBE - I
BRZEEERRELCHELE -

RETENZEEBLE  RIEFFRH
AAXRFRIZNERE - HE-F
—hETZAZT-HLEFE RRR
ARYNBOTE B25%  MARIFF RO
ER15% XNERBRENAREE
BOBIBBRE -FUME  AKHE
EREEHBEEERAETHERABBR

HRE -

F R AR R M ROR B A AT FRANE - I
%HE%EAEM%nwwﬂ:gfﬁ
F:D)RAELHEEAE - KERHE
EBETEEEAIERIENEBAR
9372000 (=T —RF : F) -

(&N
ARBRZZE—MENATN\BRER
ERSAREEREHSAMK LI AE
HEBRAF - HH 50000 RSREE
ETHETE RS °

RZZE-—REMNA+LER  KAAFME
E ] B %17 R 7N 850,000 % & % E (B
1,003 7T 49 A% 12 #7 4 7% 5,000,000 X & F%
EE00I ETMRR ([HF4])
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+F+-A=1—HIFE

25.

160

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Following the Sub-division, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from US$50,000 at par value of US$0.01 each to US$20,000,000 at par
value of US$0.01 each.

Pursuant to written resolutions of the Company's shareholders passed on 14
December 2015, conditional upon the crediting of the share premium account of
the Company as a result of the issue of shares pursuant to the global offering, the
directors of the Company had authorised to allot and issue a total of 295,000,000
shares, by way of capitalisation of the sum of approximately US$2,950,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB19,365,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, credited as fully paid at par to the shareholders
as appearing on the register of members of the Company (“Capitalisation Issue”).

The Capitalisation Issue was completed on 7 January 2016.

On 7 January 2016, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each of the
Company were issued at a price of HK$| by global offering. On the same date,
the Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
The proceeds of RMB6,565,000 (equivalent to approximately US$1,000,000)
representing the par value of the shares of the Company, were credited to the
Company's share capital. The remaining proceeds of RMB77,462,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$1 1,800,000), before issuing expenses, were credited to share

premium account.

On 26 January 2016, 15,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each of the Company
were issued at a price of HK$| by pursuant to the exercise of over-allotment
option. The proceeds of RMB983,000 (equivalent to approximately US$150,000)
representing the par value of the shares of the Company, were credited to the
Company's share capital. The remaining proceeds of approximately RMB12,451,000
(equivalent to approximately US$1,900,000), before issuing expenses, were

credited to share premium account.

NNK Group Limited
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 25. BA(E)
Details of movements of authorised and issued capital of the Company are as BRANREEREBITIRARE &
follows: BHIMT :
Number of Number of Issued and fully paid
authorised issued share capital
shares shares EROTRABRRA
EE BT Uss RMB'000
Ko #E RHHA En  AR®TR
Asat | January 2016 RZE—RF-HA—H 2,000,000,000 5,000,000 50,000 308
Issue of new shares by Capitalization Issue JA & AL 8177 A B 4TH Mk — 295,000,000 2,950,000 19,365
Issue of new shares by ways of R REEHABITHR
global offering — 100,000,000 1,000,000 6,565
Issue of new shares by exercise DT R E S
of over-allotment option BITHR — 15,000,000 150,000 983
As at 31 December 2016 and 2017 RIZ-—RERZFE—+F
+ZA=+—H 2,000,000000 415,000,000 4,150,000 27221
FEREBEBRAF 161
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26.

27.

162

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26. BXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to AEEERE ﬁiu\ﬁ@ﬁ:KE e
continue as a going concern while maximizing the retum to owners through the HNBHERE RN EE RS RE
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains HE %&Eﬁﬂgf\ZFEjﬁ% NEEmEES
unchanged throughout the year. AFREALOR - AEEHBERER
2ERHTE -
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes bank AEEMNEAREABBEAR  BIER
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to the owners TEZIRNBEREeNESEEBYRAR
of the Company, comprising share capital, retained earings and other reserves. BB ANEEES(BEEREN - REEF
NEM ) -
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from time to time. REFBEEEMNSRAERER - A&
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class BZzEEsMANRSEESHERNR
of capital and will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of B WS ERMRE - BTHEG -
dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debs. HEXSEBERNREE ﬁﬁﬁ?@]ﬁ% R
PN
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. &®MIA
a.  Categories of financial instruments a  SEMIAES
2017 2016
“E-t§ ZTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT
Financial assets tREE
Loans and receivables SRR EKRE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (RERERRLEEM) 205,209 196,478
Financial liabilities tRAE
Amortised cost B SRR 168,595 120,833

NNK Group Limited
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables and
bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risks (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk related primarily to certain
bank balances and bank borrowings that are denominated in HK$ and
US$. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated

monetary asset at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

27. &RIE#E)

b.

PHEERREEREREE
AEENIRSRTIABREESE
WsoR - EtREOR - e R
EEY  BHENE - AffE
NHRBERBTER - ZFEMTA
HFHENERM T T - B
LRTAFRNRAREBRENSAR
(EBEREMNERER)  FERR
FRgEzRR - MEREZEFRE
MEBRHN X - EEEEER
ERZERAR  RERIEEER
SERIEE 1R ©

mERR

EEER
AEEmEGEERNBTRETA
ENETRITESRRITIERERE
HOSME R © AR BRI I & ({0
SNEEIRIRSR o AT EREEE
SMNERR I HE BEHBAINER
BHBE)

AEENEREDRUIMNEHER
EREEMNRREDT :

As at 31 December

R+=—RA=+-8
2017 2016
—E2—tF C—ZF
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETRT ARETRT
Monetary asset EHEE
HK$ BT 28,717 47,866
US$ ET 5 1,662
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €@MIE#®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HEERREEEERIEEZ)

Market risk (continued) mBER(E)
Currency risk (continued) E¥ERG (&)
Sensitivity analysis BREAT
The Group exposes foreign currency risk on fluctuation of HK$ and US$ BE-_T—tFR_E—7"Ft+=
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. The following table A=1+—HItFE  AEEEEH
details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in TRETTREMINERE - TR
RMB against HK$ or US$. 5% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used which MAEEHARB BT ETCH
represents the management's assessment of the reasonably possible change EREESSZE—RE 1 5%)8
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding BURE - FTAMS%(ZE—REF -
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation 5% ) BURR IR 15 E 1 [ 3 SN P T K )
at the year-end for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A RSB EBMTE - GURELT
positive (negative) number below indicates increase (decrease) in post-tax ERFENINEHENREREEEE
result where RMB weakened 5% (2016: 5%) against HK$ or US$. For a 5% B WRERINEEEH5%(=
(2016: 5%) strengthening of RMB against HK$ or US$, there would be an T—RNE %) BHHABRELRE
equal and opposite impact in the profit or loss. THEH(BE)RBRHARER

BLHETRESS(ZT—RF
5%) MR R EBMORD) 5'>7t

AR BT RFETTIHE 5%(=
—AEFSR)ME  HEESR ﬁ
ASRARYE -
As at 3| December
R+=-R=t-H
2017 2016
“E-t§ —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT ARETE
HK$ BT 1,199 1988
US$ XL | 69
In the management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of EEERL  GIRESTTERE
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect RNESNERR - BAERRREE
the exposure during the year. REBERNREE o

1 64 NNK Group Limited
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from
bank borrowings and cash and cash equivalents which carry interests at

prevailing market rates.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its
exposure associated with transactions relating to cash flows interest rate risk.
However, the management of Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in

the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 10 basis point increase or decrease in interest rate
on cash and cash equivalents and a 50 basis point increase or decrease in
interest rate on floating rate bank borrowings are used which represent the
management's assessment of the reasonably possible changes in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower for cash and cash
equivalents and 50 basis points higher/lower for bank borrowings, with all
other variables held constant, the Group's post-tax result for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 would decrease/increase by approximately

RMB397,000 and RMB234,000 respectively.

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

27. &RIE#E)

b.

PHEERREERERAE(E)
mEER(E)

FIF e
AEBETEHRRRTHIEN K
BHBRITEFARRE KR EFE
MmalERREREMNEER o

KSR B30 4 R PR AE ) ) R 45 R
ESRBERENEEABRNRZZT

FTEERER - A AEEERE
BERMEER UTHEZEREE

EREPEANEER - AEEE
SRABNEFEMEENER T
RAKFREE 2 RREE 85
it o

HRED

NTHRESMIRERREHR
Mg LRe FENARBITER
HWMERRET - REZDMET)
BRRBERRREENERT
AREBEFROREER - ARAH
SRR FEMRMKRD 1018
EE AT BRITIEFE Isks >
SOEEHMKBEE R REER
HAXEREBER T A RHRNE
B -

WRERRESEMHNE LA/
TR 10fE &2 R RITE R FIX
LA/ THRSOEEE - FTEEM
BERBTE AASEREZR

T—tER-_F-—A~E+_-A
ST-HUEFEOREEERED
IR/ 184 AR 397,000 T
R AR 2340007
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27.

166

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The credit risk on liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings

and stated-owned banks with good reputation.

In the opinion of directors, the Group has no significant credit risk with any
banks as the Group maintains long-term and stable business relationships
with those banks. For other receivables, the Group performs an ongoing
individual credit evaluation of their counterparties’ financial conditions,
and the management is of the opinion that the outstanding debts are
recoverable. Regarding balances with related companies, the Group assesses
the recoverability by reviewing their financial position and results periodically

and the management considers the credit risk to be insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents as well as undrawn banking facilities
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings to ensure compliance with loan

covenants.
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Annual Report 2017

27. €WIAE)

b.

PEEREERRRUEK(E)
FERR

EERBEETF I RERITEAGH
BEEMEAEEEX B BROME
k- AU F I REEREEFRN
BIRABREBENBFRT -
WRBESHEERRER -

EEAR AREECMETLE
EMEREERR  RERAEE
BZSRTERZRIBTOXH
BfE - BAMEKTENE - A&
BREREEF OB BRRER

EITEERE ﬁa@Fwﬁii
EEHA TRE - AR AR
ﬁ%‘$%§@hi%$ﬁﬁ%%
R FERFFEATRERER -
EEBRAEERARLTEK

RBEEER
RERRBECRRE - AREE
RUAREEEARRNENAE
B EELRERSRERD TR
MY ENRT KRS FEMUARK
REURITRIEKY - EEEERR
TERNERERAERETER

EQA‘H N

an



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
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27. &RIEE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HEEREEEERBEKE)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELRR(E)
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturities Tty EREFIAEE SR EENE
for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the BAMNTHER - ZFHER2ER
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on SREBENAUBRHEESRERERN
which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest AEEHERNRNRT B PR
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, 8o P RBENEEAESHREE
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the = o WA B AZEF X » KBLIE
reporting period. SR REHRNMEGS -
Repayable
Weighted  on demand Total
average or within undiscounted
effective 3 months 6months  cash flows
interestrate  AHER 36 tolyear AR Carrying
mEY HR3EA months ¢fA HReRE amount
BRA= WEE 3Z¢fHA BIf ag REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
As at 3| December 2017 WZE—+%+-A=1+—H
Trade payables BHRMNTE — 39,626 — - 39,626 39,626
Other payables BN A — 4969 — - 4969 4969
Bank borrowings RITER 517 74,030 — 52,540 126,570 124,000
118,625 — 52,540 171,165 168,595
As at 3| December 2016 R=F-~E+-A=t+-H
Trade payables EIRMNTE — 36911 - - 36911 36911
Other payables BN A - 390 - - 392 392
Bank borrowings FITER 457 30000 - 51714 81714 80000
70833 — 51714 122,547 120,833
Fair value of financial instruments c. SRTENAEE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing model based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair value.

RBERATENEREER TR
BENDFHERBMAREREN
TERARTERLETE °
ARREZRR - NEBERATIR
GRMBRRNEREENERA
EMRAEEEAFEMS
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28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28, KREHERE
The Group as lessee AEEEREBA
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- AREBRBENATRELCEREAZED
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: RTIESREZ X MR RKERSE -
2017 2016
“E-tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TRT
Within one year —FR 2,645 380
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFLF(EEMEBBEN) 8,285 190
10,930 570
Operating lease payments represent rental fee payable by the Group for office AT ENIBEANER R A EEN
premises. Lease of rental premises are negotiated with fixed lease terms from | to e HEYMENRYE I T558(=
5 years (2016: | to 2 years). T—RNF | 22F)METHERRERS -
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BEHARS

(@)  Significant related party transactions
Al related companies were under the common control of certain directors

of the Company and the Shareholders.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following significant transaction with a related party

during the year:

@) EBEXBBLEXZ
EBBARIBALRETES
&R LR o

R BRREMEIARES
o REERFNE R E
UATBARS :

2017 2016

Z2-t§ T F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR

Service fee paid to Shenzhou Tongfu MBI REE = 132

NNK Group Limited
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FA+F1T-A=1—HIFE

9. BMAIREZ %)

Compensation of key management personnel by FEEBAESNHE
The remuneration of key management personnel which represents the FR TEEBAE(JEARAE
directors of the Company and key executives of the Group during the year ERAEETZITHAR)NME
were as follows: N
2017 2016
“E2-tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETL
Salaries and other short term benefits o REMESEN 4314 4415
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RINBAIETEIHER 281 283
4,595 4,698
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having BFENTETRAENHE S E
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. BEARBENTSBRET -
Guarantee () ER

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's unsecured bank borrowings facilities
were guaranteed by Shenzhen Sinomaster Investment Group Co. Ltd.
("Shenzhen Sinomaster”), Shenzhen Quangiuxing Investment Management
Company Limited, Daily Charge SZ, Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua and
Mr. Li Xiangcheng who were the Shareholders of the Company, to the
extent of RMB275,000,000, of which RMB124,000,000 was utilised. As at
3| December 2016, the Group's bank borrowings facilities were guaranteed
by Shenzhen Sinomaster, Shenzhen Quangiuxing Investment Management
Company Limited, Mr. Huang Junmou, Mr. Yang Hua, and Mr. Li Xiangcheng
who were Shareholders of the Company, to the extent of RMB380,000,000,
of which RMB80,000,000 was utilised.

R_E—tE+-A=1+—8"
ARENRTEFBEHRIT
eMBEREREAR2RR
BMBE]) RITRREREE
BERRAR - RREFRY - =HE
REE BEEERFEIREAE
(BRARBRE)ER EUAA
R 275,000,000 B - HH A
R ¥ 124000000 LEE A - R =
T E+-A=1+—H K£E
KA IRITIE A E f R I3 M
B RMEREREEEARAD
A BRELE  BELEREER
RAEE(IRARRRIRE)ER -
PAA R # 380,000,000 A - E
AR 80,000,000 TEE)
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 14 December 2015, the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to a resolution passed by its then shareholders on 14 December 2015, for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible employees, non-

executive directors of the Company and other selected participants.

The principal terms of which are summarised in the section headed “Statutory and
General Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no share option was granted.

NNK Group Limited
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

were as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Date and place
of incorporation/

establishment

31

Issued and fully
paid share/capital/

registered capital

Gl PN

ARARZE—LFRZB-RETS
A=+—ANHEATRENT

Attributable equity
interests to the Group

As at 3| December

Principal activities

AL/ ERTREAR ARBEERE

WELAREH PRI B R i R RE/EREE Rt=A=t-H TEXH
(Note) 2017 2016
(M) Bt “TRF

Phone Charge Technology Limited* [9 June 2014 HK$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
British Virgin Islands

Phone Charge Technology Limited* —ZT-WERATAR 50,000 % 7T 100% 100% HREMAER
REBRAES

NN Payment Limited* 28 February 2017 HK$50,000 100% N/A " Investment holding
British Virgin Islands

NN Payment Limited* “E—+F-A-1t)\R 50000787 100% NER REER
RBRLES

Daly Charge HK Company Limited? 7)uly 2014 HK$50,000 100% [00%  Investment holding
Hong Kong

AREMB(BR)BRATC “E-mELALH 50,000 87T 100% 100% RAER
&b

EEXARATR 20 March 2017 HK$25,000000 100% N/A  Dormant
Hong Kong

EEXNERARC “E—+FZA-tH 2500000077 100% TNER  TEE
0

Daly Charge 72 30 January 2015 RMBI,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
The PRC

ARE R ~E-Rf-A=tH AR 10000007 100% 100% RAER
i

Shenzhen NNK@ I3 June 2006 RMB20,680,000 100% 100%  Mobile top-up services
The PRC

RYFFRe “ERRERATER ARH206800007 100% 100% FHEZTERS

PE

FEREEFRAR
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31

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

were as follows: (continued)

Date and place

of incorporation/

31

Issued and fully

paid share/capital/

WEARFEE)
ARAR-F—tFR-_T—RF+Z
A=T—ROMBRRFENT : (£)

Attributable equity

interests to the Group

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital As at 3| December Principal activities
AL, BERTREMR rEBELRE

WEARER RISk BA/FRER R+=A=t-8 TEEH
(Note) 217 2016
(W) E-tF —E5F

AREFERBBRBR AR 25 June 2016 RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
The PRC

AMIFEFFABRBRERAFe —E-RESAZTHA AR 5,0000007C 100% TER TEY
i

ERRMERBRRHBRARC 31 August 2016 RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
The PRC

ERRNIERBREBZAERARC -5 \A=t-H AR %50,0000007T 100% NER  TE
i

Note: Incorporated/established as limited liability company.

* The equity interests of the subsidiaries are directly held by the Company.

@ The equity interests of the subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of each

reporting period or at any time during the year.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE 32. ROTEBRARBER
COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—tFE —TNF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR

Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KENBAT 12,762 40
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries e BT A B RIE = 2,203
Prepayments BANIE 1,474 -
Cash and cash equivalents RebkHeEED 17,872 48577
19,346 50,780
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables Hfth IR 762 542
762 542
Net current assets MBEEFE 18,584 50,238
Total assets less current liabilities and net assets BEERTDEENEEFE 31,346 50,278
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital R A 27,221 2722
Reserves 5 4,125 23,057
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company ARRIER AEIGRESRSE 31,346 50,278
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE 3. RAFRUBERAREERE)
COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves EKRAAREESE
Share  Accumulated Total
premium losses equity

i gripi RIER EHAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR%®Tn

At | January 2016 RZZE—-R"F—-HF—H — (27,325) (27,325)
Profit for the year FRE A — 2,385 2,385
Issue of new shares by the Company AARIEERCBITET

upon Capitalisation Issue (note 25) it (B aE25) (19,365) — (19,365)
Issue of new shares by the Company ARARAEHRBEERITHRNG

upon global offering 77462 — 77,462
Issue of new shares by the Company AR E R A R T

upon exercise of over-allotment option BITHRM 12,451 — 12,451
Share issue expenses B EITHX (22,551) — (22,551)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RFET-A=+—H 47,997 (24,940) 23,057
Loss for the year FRNER — (8972) (8972)
Dividend paid (note 12) ERRE (M 12) (9.960) — (9,960)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+—H 38,037 (33912) 4,125
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

33.

E=up S

for the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—+F+A=1—HIFE

RETHELNEBHE

TRALAKERETDELNEEE
g BRASIEREEY - BEEY
EXNBBEENASESARENER
AREREIRRRERECLHHD

activities. BRREIPATRENRE -
Bank

borrowings Total
BITER #st
RMB’000 RMB’000
THERT THERT
At | January 2017 R-_Z—+%—HA—H 80,000 80,000
Financing cash flows MERERE 37,607 37,607
Interest expenses FMERX 6,393 6,393
At 31 December 2017 R-T—tF+-A=1—H 124,000 124,000

FEREEFRAR
2017 R 175




Five-Year Financial Summary

LFEMBRE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND BRGAERREMZERER
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 3| December
BEt-A=t—-HLFE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tF T F —T-0F —T-0mF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT ARETT ARBTT AR®TRL

Revenue WA 83,321 162,564 231,370 223,553 136711
Cost of revenue W A B (38,520) (77850)  (110867)  (105901) (63.957)
Gross profit £ 43,364 82,143 115,736 112,509 70,153
Listing expenses Haiilaha — — (24,240) (7.287) —
(Loss) profit before tax PR AT (B 1R) &M (19,729) 34,650 38527 59444 34212
Income tax credit (expense) FEBiiEe (M%) 691 (1,105) (11,724) (4941) (3973)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ~ JA N A LIEIGE A (BB )&F :
— owners of the Company e VNGIE SN (19,038) 33,545 26,803 54,520 30,257
— non-controlling interests — IR — — — (17) (18)
Loss for the year from discontinued ARRIEBAEIECELE
operation attributable to owners REEBENBRE
of the Company = — — (26,065) (10,381)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive  (E518) /&7 R 2E (FZ)
(expense) income B % (19,038) 33,545 26,803 28438 19,858
(Loss) earnings per share - basic from BT & EHMFRER
continuing operation (RMB) (B1B)BM(ARET) (0.05) 008 0.09 0.8 0.10
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EESASERER
As at 3| December
R+=A=1+-8
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE-tF TR ZT-hF —T-0mF —T-=F%
RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMBO000  RMBO000  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARBTE ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT
Total assets BEE 419,732 413458 602,799 409,223 375,283
Total liabilities mafmE 215,48 180,209 478,005 311,232 301,184
Total equity bR 204,251 233,249 124,794 97991 74,099
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